
 1 

 
PLUMAS LAFCO  

 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
MONDAY August 12, 2019 

 
10:00 AM 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS CHAMBERS - PLUMAS COUNTY COURTHOUSE 

 
520 Main Street 

QUINCY, CALIFORNIA 
 

Website:  www.plumaslafco.org  
 

Commissioners: 
 
Tom Cooley, City Member, Chair 
Vacant, County Member, Vice Chair 
Bill Powers, City Member 
Sharon Thrall, County Member 
Vacant, Public Member 
Terry Swofford, Public Member Alt. 
Kevin Goss, County Member Alt. 
Pat Morton, City Member Alt. 
 
 

Staff: 
 
Jennifer Stephenson, Executive Officer 
John Benoit, Deputy Executive Officer 
Cheryl Kolb, Clerk 
P. Scott Browne, Counsel 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING - CONVENES AT 10:00 A.M. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  Pledge of Allegiance and Roll Call 

  
2. Approval of Agenda (additions or deletions) 
 
3. Correspondence: 

a) Resignation of Commissioner Sanchez from Board of Supervisors and LAFCO 
b) Letter from Beckwourth Fire Protection District 
 

4. CONSENT ITEM (S) 
 

a) Approval of the June 10th, 2019 LAFCo minutes 
 

5. Public Comment 
 

  Members of the public are invited to address the Commission on any matter of 
interest to the public that is not on the agenda for a period of time not exceeding 
5 minutes.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, the Commission cannot take any action 
on items not listed on the posted agenda but may add to a future agenda matters 
brought up under public comments for appropriate action at a future meeting. 

Jennifer Stephenson
Amended



 2 

  
 

6. Authorize payment of Claims for June 2019 and July 2019  
 

 a) Authorize payment of claims for June 2019 and July 2019. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS and ACTION ITEMS: 
7. Public Hearing regarding a Sphere of Influence amendment for Plumas 

Hospital District, annexation of territory within Indian Valley Healthcare District 
to the Plumas Hospital District, and dissolution of Indian Valley Healthcare 
District 

 
a) Receive Executive Officer’s report 
b) Conduct Public Hearing 
c) Consider Resolution 2019-0005 adopting a Sphere of Influence Amendment 

for Plumas Hospital District 
d) Consider Resolution 2019-0006 approving annexation of territory within 

Indian Valley Healthcare District to the Plumas Hospital District 
e) Consider Resolution 2019-0007 approving dissolution of the Indian Valley 

Hospital District 
 
8. Discuss Bylaws and potential updates 

 
a) Review edited Bylaws for consideration at October 21, 2019 meeting  

 
9. Consider selection of a Public Member to fill a vacancy per Government 

Code Section 56331 
 

a) Consider selection of a Public Member 
 
10. Conduct vote for SDRMA Board representation 

 
a) Conduct a vote for SDRMA Board (up to three representatives) 

 
11. Select Commissioner to attend the CALAFCO Annual Conference at the 

Hyatt Regency in Sacramento October 30- November 1, 2019. 
 

a) Select commissioner to attend the CALAFCO Annual Conference October 30 
– November 1, 2019. 

 
12. Nomination for the CALAFCo Board of Directors 2019-2020. Nominate a 

County Member (and) or a Special District Member for the CALAFCO 
Northern Region. 

 
a) Nominate a County and (or) a Special District Member to the CALAFCO Board 

of Directors   
 
13. Consider nominations for CALAFCO 2019 Annual Achievement Awards 

 
a) Nominate individuals/groups for any of the following 1) Outstanding 
CALAFCO Member, 2) Most Effective Commission, 3) Outstanding 



 3 

Commissioner, 4) Outstanding LAFCo Professional, 5) Outstanding LAFCo Clerk, 
6) Outstanding CALAFCO Associate Member,7) Project of the Year, 8) 
Distinguished Service Award, 9) Government Leadership Award, 10) Legislator of 
the Year, 11) Mike Gotch Courage and Innovation in Local Government Award, 
12) Lifetime Achievement Award. 

 
14. Designate voting member (and voting member alternate) to vote on behalf of 

Plumas LAFCo at the Annual CALAFCO Conference in Sacramento. 
 

a) Designate voting member (and voting member alternate) 
 

15. Election of Chair and Vice-Chair for FY 2019-2020. 
a. Election of the LAFCo Chair for FY 2019-2020 
b. Election of the LAFCo Vice-Chair for FY 2019-2020 

 
16. Executive Officer’s Report 
 

a) Update from CALAFCO Legislation Committee 
b) Application status of CHP facility (File 2019-0001) 
c) Meeting for Eastern Plumas Fire Provider Potential Change of Organization 

 
16. Commissioner Reports 

 
This item is placed on the agenda for Commissioners to discuss items and issues 
of concern to their constituency, LAFCO, and legislative matters. 

 
17. Adjourn to next regular meeting. 

 
LAFCo’s next regular meeting to take place 10:00 am on October 21, 2019 (due to 

Columbus Day being on October 14, 2019) 
 

The Commission may take action upon any item listed on the agenda.  Unless otherwise 
noted, items may be taken up at any time during the meeting. 

Any member appointed on behalf of local government shall represent the 
interests of the public as a whole and not solely the interest of the appointing 

authority Government Code Section 56325.1 
 

Accessibility         
An interpreter for the hearing-impaired may be made available upon request to the Executive Officer 72 
hours before a meeting. 
 
The location of this meeting is wheelchair-accessible.  If other accommodations are required to assist a 
person with a disability to participate in the meeting, please contact the Commission Clerk 24 hours before 
the meeting as indicated below. 
 
Disclosure & Disqualification Requirements 
Any person or group of persons acting in concert who directly or indirectly contribute $1,000 or more in sup-
port of or in opposition to a change of organization or reorganization that has been submitted to Plumas 
LAFCO must comply with the disclosure requirements of the Political Reform Act of 1974 applicable to local 
initiative measures to be submitted to the electorate. These requirements contain provisions for making dis-
closures of contributions and expenditures at specified intervals; they may be reviewed at Government Code 
§§56700.1 and 81000 et seq.  Additional information about the requirements pertaining to local initiative 



 4 

measures to be presented to the electorate can be obtained by calling the Fair Political Practices 
Commission at (916) 322-5660. 
 
A LAFCO Commissioner must disqualify herself or himself from voting on an application involving an 
“entitlement for use” (such as an annexation or sphere amendment) if, within the last twelve months, the 
Commissioner has received $250 or more in campaign contributions from the applicant, any financially 
interested person who actively supports or opposes the application, or an agency (such as an attorney, en-
gineer, or planning consultant) representing the applicant or an interested party.  The law (Government 
Code Section 84308) also requires any applicant or other participant in a LAFCO proceeding to disclose the 
contribution amount and name of the recipient Commissioner on the official record of the proceeding. 
 
Late-Distributed Materials.  Any material submitted to the Commission after this agenda is posted will be 
made available for public inspection as soon as possible in the Plumas County Planning Department  office 
at 555 Main Street, Quincy, CA. and at the LAFCo Webpage  www.plumaslafco.org  
  
Contact LAFCO Staff  LAFCO staff may be contacted at 530-283-7069 or by mail at LAFCo of Plumas 
County, 5050 Laguna Blvd #112-711, Elk Grove, CA 95758 or by email at jennifer@pcateam.com or by fax 
at 888-501-0395. 



Jennifer Stephenson
Agenda Item #3





 1 

 
 

PLUMAS LAFCO  
 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
 

MONDAY June 10, 2019 
 

10:00 AM 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS CHAMBERS - PLUMAS COUNTY COURTHOUSE 

 

520 Main Street 

QUINCY, CALIFORNIA 

 

Website:  www.plumaslafco.org  
 

Commissioners: 

 

Tom Cooley, City Member, Chair 

Michael Sanchez, County Member, Vice Chair 

Bill Powers, City Member 

Sharon Thrall, County Member 

Vacant, Public Member 

Terry Swofford, Public Member Alt. 

Kevin Goss, County Member Alt. 

Pat Morton, City Member Alt. 

 

 

Staff: 

 

Jennifer Stephenson, Executive Officer 

John Benoit, Deputy Executive Officer 

Cheryl Kolb, Clerk 

P. Scott Browne, Counsel 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING - CONVENES AT 10:00 A.M. 
 

1.    CALL TO ORDER:  Pledge of Allegiance and Roll Call 
Roll Call. 
Present: Chair Tom Cooley, Vice Chair Michael Sanchez, Co. Member 
Sharon Thrall, City Member Bill Powers, Public Member Alternate Terry 
Swofford. 

  
2.    Approval of Agenda (additions or deletions) 

No additions or deletions. 
 
3.    Correspondence:  None 
 
4. CONSENT ITEM (S) 

 
a)    Approval of the April 8th, 2019 LAFCo minutes 

Motion: Minutes of the April 8th, 2019 LAFCo minutes, Action: Approve, Moved 
by City Member Bill Powers, Seconded by Public Member Alternate Terry 
Swofford. 

Jennifer Stephenson
Agenda Item #4



 2 

Motion passed unanimously. 
 

5. Public Comment 
 

     Members of the public are invited to address the Commission on any matter 
of interest to the public that is not on the agenda for a period of time not exceeding 
5 minutes.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, the Commission cannot take any action on 
items not listed on the posted agenda but may add to a future agenda matters 
brought up under public comments for appropriate action at a future meeting. 

 None. 
 

6. Authorize payment of Claims for April 2019 and May 2019  
 

a)    Authorize payment of claims for April 2019 and May 2019 and transfer of 
$500 from Contingency Budget to Membership. 
Motion: Authorize payment of claims for April 2019 and May 2019 and transfer 
of $500 from Contingency Budget to Membership, Action: Approve, Moved 
by Vice Chair Michael Sanchez, Seconded by City Member Bill Powers. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS and ACTION ITEMS: 
 
7. Public Hearing regarding the Final 2019-2020 LAFCo Budget. 
 

a)    Review Executive Officer’s report.  
b)    Discuss CalPERS Unfunded Liability payment and status of budget 

planning by City and County. 
c)    Confirm willingness to contribute budgeted Reserve and Stipend funds 

to payment of CalPERS Unfunded Liability should the City and County each 
contribute half of the remaining share in FY 2019-2020. 

d)    Consider LAFCo Resolution 2019-0003 suspending County and City 
Commissioner stipends for the period of one year.  Vote: Motion passed 
(summary: Yes = 4, No = 1, Abstain = 0). 
Yes: Chair Tom Cooley, Vice Chair Michael Sanchez, Public Member 
Alternate Terry Swofford, County Member Sharon Thrall. 
No: City Member Bill Powers. 

e)    Conduct public hearing and consider LAFCo Resolution 2019-0004 
adopting a Final LAFCo Budget for Fiscal Year 2019-2020.  Vote: Motion 
carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 5). 
Yes: Chair Tom Cooley, Vice Chair Michael Sanchez, City Member Bill 
Powers, Public Member Alternate Terry Swofford, County Member Sharon 
Thrall. 

 
8.    Discuss Bylaws and potential updates 

 
a) Review existing Bylaws and discuss potential updates  

 
9.    Discuss next actions to fill Public Member vacancy 



 3 

 
a) To date we have not received any interest in filling the Public Member 

vacancy.  Please have any interested individuals submit an email of interest 
to the Executive Officer. 

 
10.    Executive Officer’s Report 
 

a) Update from CALAFCO Legislation Committee 
b) Application status of Indian Valley Healthcare District and Plumas Hospital 

District (File 2018-0002) 
c) Application status of CHP facility (File 2019-0001) 
d) Meeting for Eastern Plumas Fire Provider Potential Change of Organization 

 

11.    Commissioner Reports 
 

This item is placed on the agenda for Commissioners to discuss items and issues 
of concern to their constituency, LAFCO, and legislative matters. 

 
12.    Adjourn to next regular meeting.  Adjourned at 10:53 a.m. 

 
LAFCo’s next regular meeting to take place 10:00 am on August 12th, 2019  

 

The Commission may take action upon any item listed on the agenda.  Unless otherwise 

noted, items may be taken up at any time during the meeting. 

Any member appointed on behalf of local government shall represent the 
interests of the public as a whole and not solely the interest of the appointing 

authority Government Code Section 56325.1 
 

Accessibility
         
An interpreter for the hearing-impaired may be made available upon request to the Executive Officer 72 hours 

before a meeting. 

 

The location of this meeting is wheelchair-accessible.  If other accommodations are required to assist a person 

with a disability to participate in the meeting, please contact the Commission Clerk 24 hours before the meeting 

as indicated below. 

 
Disclosure & Disqualification Requirements 

Any person or group of persons acting in concert who directly or indirectly contribute $1,000 or more in support 

of or in opposition to a change of organization or reorganization that has been submitted to Plumas LAFCO 

must comply with the disclosure requirements of the Political Reform Act of 1974 applicable to local initiative 

measures to be submitted to the electorate. These requirements contain provisions for making disclosures of 

contributions and expenditures at specified intervals; they may be reviewed at Government Code §§56700.1 

and 81000 et seq.  Additional information about the requirements pertaining to local initiative measures to be 

presented to the electorate can be obtained by calling the Fair Political Practices Commission at (916) 322-

5660. 

 

A LAFCO Commissioner must disqualify herself or himself from voting on an application involving an 

“entitlement for use” (such as an annexation or sphere amendment) if, within the last twelve months, the 

Commissioner has received $250 or more in campaign contributions from the applicant, any financially 

interested person who actively supports or opposes the application, or an agency (such as an attorney, en-

gineer, or planning consultant) representing the applicant or an interested party.  The law (Government Code 

Section 84308) also requires any applicant or other participant in a LAFCO proceeding to disclose the contri-

bution amount and name of the recipient Commissioner on the official record of the proceeding. 



 4 

 

Late-Distributed Materials.  Any material submitted to the Commission after this agenda is posted will be made 

available for public inspection as soon as possible in the Plumas County Planning Department  office at 555 

Main Street, Quincy, CA. and at the LAFCo Webpage  www.plumaslafco.org  

  
Contact LAFCO Staff  LAFCO staff may be contacted at 530-283-7069 or by mail at LAFCo of Plumas 

County, 5050 Laguna Blvd #112-711, Elk Grove, CA 95758 or by email at jennifer@pcateam.com or by fax 

at 888-501-0395. 



    

plumas 

 
 

Chair: 
Tom Cooley 

 

Commissioners: 
Vacant, Vice Chair 

Sherrie Thrall, County 
Vacant, Pub 

Bill Powers, City  
Kevin Goss, County Alt 

Pat Morton, Alt  
T. Swofford, Pub Alt 

                   Executive Officer: 
Jennifer Stephenson 

 

Clerk: 
Cheryl Kolb 

   

   
 

                                                   LLLAAAFFFCCCooo      
 
 

Claim Authorization Form  
June 2019 and July 2019 Expenses  

 
The Local Agency Formation Commission of Plumas County hereby authorizes the payment of the 
following claims from the 2018-2019 budget:  
 
Date of Claim    Description     Amount 
 
June 7, 2019  Pers unfunded liability June 19   $      504.20 
June 8, 2019  Commissioner Mileage June 19   $      211.53 
June 15, 2019  AT&T (June 19)     $        55.16 
July 2, 2019  Staff Svcs June 2019     $   5,445.63 
July 1, 2019  Planning Staff Svcs Jan – Jun 2019   $      371.15 
 
TOTAL June 2019 (FY 18-19)  - LAFCo  expenses:           $   6,587.67 
 
The Local Agency Formation Commission of Plumas County hereby authorizes the payment of the 
following claims from the 2019-2020 budget:  
 
Date of Claim    Description     Amount 
 
May 15, 2019  SDRMA Insurance     $   1,380.00 
July 1, 2019  CALAFCO Membership    $   1,075.00 
July 7, 2019  Pers unfunded liability July 19   $      531.24 
July 1, 2019  Health Care-Gullixson July 19    $      650.40 
July 14, 2019  Feather River Publishing (File 2018-2)  $      187.20 
July 15, 2019  AT&T (July 19)     $        55.90 
August 1, 2019  Health Care-Gullixson Aug 19    $      650.40 
August 5, 2019  Staff Svcs July 2018     $   5,192.98 
 
TOTAL July 2019 (FY 19-20)  - LAFCo  expenses:           $   9,723.12 
 
DATED:  August 12, 2019 
 
APPROVED:  August 12, 2019 
      
 

________________________________________ 
Tom Cooley, Chair Plumas LAFCo 

 
Attest: 
 
_______________________________________ 
Jennifer Stephenson, Executive Officer  

The Local Agency Formation 
Commission Serving Plumas County 

Jennifer Stephenson
Agenda Item #6



Plumas LAFCO FY 19-20 Bookkeeping

Item Insurance Office Copies Communications Postage Memberships Legal Svcs Ex. OFF. Svcs Clerk Publications Travel Mileage MSR/SOIs Commiss File Management
Account Number SDRMA Expense Commission Stipends
Total Budgeted 1,300.00$   300.00$    800.00$   900.00$             300.00$   1,576.00$     2,000.00$ 43,000.00$   1,035.00$ 1,300.00$  2,500.00$    1,500.00$      16,000.00$    1,200.00$ 3,700.00$            

Pers unfunded liability Jul19
Health Care-Gullixson Jul 19
Health Care-Gullixson Aug 19
AT&T (Jul 19) (55.90)$              
Calafco dues (1,075.00)$    
SDRMA (1,380.00)$ 
Feather Publishing Legal Notice (File 2018-2)
Staff Svcs Jul 19 (27.98)$              (3,500.00)$   

TOTAL EXPENDED (1,380.00)$ -$          -$         (83.88)$              -$        (1,075.00)$    -$          (3,500.00)$   -$          -$           -$             -$              -$              -$          -$                    
TOTAL REMAINING (80.00)$      300.00$    800.00$   816.12$             300.00$   501.00$        2,000.00$ 39,500.00$   1,035.00$ 1,300.00$  2,500.00$    1,500.00$      16,000.00$    1,200.00$ 3,700.00$            



Plumas LAFCO FY 19-20 Bookkeeping

Item
Account Number
Total Budgeted

Pers unfunded liability Jul19
Health Care-Gullixson Jul 19
Health Care-Gullixson Aug 19
AT&T (Jul 19)
Calafco dues
SDRMA
Feather Publishing Legal Notice (File 2018-2)
Staff Svcs Jul 19

TOTAL EXPENDED
TOTAL REMAINING

County Health CalPERS Agency TOTAL RESERVE Contingency EP Consolidation IV Consolidation CHP Annex
Contract Insurance Unfunded Training BUDGET 4451 File 2018-0001 File 2018-0002 File 2019-0001

1,300.00$     7,903.00$       59,192.00$  5,000.00$    150,806.00$ 44,529.92$ 5,000.00$   10,254.76$        $12,622 $9,835
(531.24)$      (531.24)$       

(650.40)$         (650.40)$       
(650.69)$         (650.69)$       

(55.90)$         
(1,075.00)$    
(1,380.00)$    

-$              (187.20)$            
(3,527.98)$    (1,665.00)$         

-$              

-$              
-$             (1,301.09)$      (531.24)$      -$             (7,871.21)$    -$            -$           -$                   (1,852.20)$         -$                   

1,300.00$     6,601.91$       58,660.76$  5,000.00$    142,934.79$ 44,529.92$ 5,000.00$   10,254.76$        10,769.78$        9,834.50$          



Plumas LAFCO FY 18-19 Bookkeeping

Item Insurance Office Copies Communications Postage Memberships Legal Svcs Ex. OFF. Svcs Clerk Publications Travel Mileage MSR/SOIs Commiss File Management County Health CalPERS TOTAL RESERVE Contingency EP Consolidation
Account Number SDRMA Expense Commission Stipends Contract Insurance Unfunded BUDGET 4451 File 2018-0001
Total Budgeted 1,275.00$   500.00$    600.00$   900.00$             200.00$   1,426.00$     2,000.00$ 46,000.00$   1,035.00$   900.00$     2,500.00$    1,500.00$      20,000.00$    -$       4,100.00$            1,500.00$     7,600.00$       6,050.00$    98,086.00$   44,529.92$ 5,000.00$   17,975.00$        

SDRMA Insurance (5-15-18) (1,198.00)$ (1,198.00)$    
SDRMA Membership (5-15-18) (500.00)$       (500.00)$       
CALAFCO Membership (7-1-18) (925.00)$       (925.00)$       
PERS Unfunded Liability July 18 (504.20)$      (504.20)$       
Gullixson Health Insurance July 18 (625.03)$         (625.03)$       
Staff Svcs July (27.98)$              (3,500.00)$   (3,527.98)$    
Benoit Staff Svcs July -$              (2,053.62)$         
CALAFCO Conf Registration (1,120.00)$   (1,120.00)$    
PERS Unfunded Liability Aug 18 (504.20)$      (504.20)$       
PERS Unfunded Liability Sept 18 (504.20)$      (504.20)$       
Gullixson Health Insurance Aug 18 (625.03)$         (625.03)$       
Gullixson Health Insurance Sept 18 (625.03)$         (625.03)$       
AT&T Aug 18 (55.82)$              (55.82)$         
AT&T Sep 18 (55.87)$              (55.87)$         
Staff Svcs Aug 18 (77.40)$    (27.98)$              (32.97)$   (3,500.00)$   (207.50)$     (1,465.00)$    (5,310.85)$    
Staff Svcs Sep 18 (104.38)$   (27.98)$              (3,500.00)$   (951.65)$      (2,100.00)$    (6,684.01)$    
Benoit Staff Svcs July -$              
CalPERS for GASB Report (350.00)$      (350.00)$       
Commisioner Mileage Aug 18 (215.22)$       (215.22)$       
Feather Publishing (COI Notice) Oct 18 (208.00)$    (208.00)$       
PERS Unfunded Liability Sept 18 (504.20)$      (504.20)$       
Health Care-Gullixson Oct 18 (624.34)$         (624.34)$       
Health Care-Gullixson Nov 18 (624.34)$         (624.34)$       
AT&T Oct 18 (55.69)$              (55.69)$         
Commissioner Mileage Oct 18 (179.69)$       (179.69)$       
Feather Publishing Public Member Notice Oct 18 (767.60)$    (767.60)$       
Staff Svcs October 2018 (45.90)$    (27.98)$              (8.20)$     (3,500.00)$   (172.50)$     (1,015.00)$    (122.50)$             (4,892.08)$    
Pers unfunded liability Nov18 (504.20)$      (504.20)$       
AT&T (Nov 18) (56.21)$              (56.21)$         
Health Care-Gullixson Dec 18 (624.34)$         (624.34)$       
Benoit Staff Svcs October 2018 -$              (2,215.27)$         
Feather Publishing EPHD Reorg Notice -$              (98.80)$              
Pers unfunded liability Dec 18 (504.20)$      (504.20)$       
Staff Svcs November 2018 (27.98)$              (3,500.00)$   (922.50)$       (157.50)$             (4,607.98)$    
Health Care-Gullixson Jan 19 (650.40)$         (650.40)$       
AT&T (Dec 18) (55.64)$              (55.64)$         
Commissioner Mileage Dec 18 (179.14)$       (179.14)$       
Mountain Messenger Public Notice -$              (131.25)$            
Pers unfunded liability Jan 19 (504.20)$      (504.20)$       
Staff Svcs December 2018 (149.29)$  (27.98)$              (103.80)$ (3,500.00)$   (172.50)$     (3,305.00)$    (52.50)$               (7,311.07)$    (1,350.00)$         
Benoit Staff Svcs December 2018 -$              (1,276.30)$         
Plumas County Clerk Recorder - NOE -$              (100.00)$            
Plumas County Planning Staff Support (262.40)$      (262.40)$       
Health Care-Gullixson Feb 19 (650.40)$         (650.40)$       
AT&T (Jan 19) (56.46)$              (56.46)$         
Pers unfunded liability Feb 19 (504.20)$      (504.20)$       
Benoit Staff Svcs January 2019 -$              
Staff Svcs January 2019 (29.62)$     (15.00)$    (27.98)$              (36.83)$   (3,500.00)$   (1,485.00)$    (5,094.43)$    (495.00)$            
Staff Svcs February 2019 (148.59)$  (27.98)$              (5.80)$     (3,500.00)$   (172.50)$     (520.00)$       (61.25)$               (4,436.12)$    
Commissiong Mileage Feb 19 (211.53)$       (211.53)$       
Pers unfunded liability Mar19 (504.20)$      (504.20)$       
Health Care-Gullixson Mar 19 (650.40)$         (650.40)$       
AT&T (Feb 19) (56.54)$              (56.54)$         
Health Care-Gullixson Apr 19 (650.40)$         (650.40)$       
AT&T (Mar 19) (55.84)$              (55.84)$         
Feather Publishing (Cemetery SOI) (208.00)$    (208.00)$       
Feather Publishing (Budget Hearing) (156.00)$    (156.00)$       
Staff Svcs Mar 2019 (186.92)$  (27.98)$              (95.41)$   (3,500.00)$   (1,462.50)$    (5,272.81)$    
Benoit Staff Svcs Mar 2019 (1.20)$     (1.20)$           
Pers unfunded liability Apr19 (504.20)$      (504.20)$       
Pers unfunded liability May19 (504.20)$      (504.20)$       
Health Care-Gullixson May 19 (650.40)$         (650.40)$       
Health Care-Gullixson June 19 (650.40)$         (650.40)$       
AT&T (Apr 19) (56.22)$              (56.22)$         
AT&T (May 19) (56.09)$              (56.09)$         
Feather Publishing (Final Budget) (145.60)$    (145.60)$       
Commisioner Mileage Apr 19 (244.01)$       (244.01)$       
Benoit Staff Svcs Apr May 2019 (200.00)$      (200.00)$       
Staff Svcs Apr 19 (91.70)$    (27.98)$              (6.40)$     (3,500.00)$   (172.50)$     (2,460.00)$    (8.75)$                 (6,267.33)$    
Staff Svcs May 19 (27.98)$              (3,500.00)$   (4,080.00)$    (7,607.98)$    
CSDA Membership -$              (500.00)$    
Pers unfunded liability Jun19 (504.20)$      (504.20)$       
AT&T (Jun 19) (55.16)$              (55.16)$         
Staff Svcs Jun 19 (85.26)$    (27.98)$              (9.89)$     (3,500.00)$   (172.50)$     (1,177.50)$    (4,973.13)$    
Planning Staff Svcs (371.15)$      (371.15)$       
Commissioner Mileage Jun18 (211.53)$       (211.53)$       

-$              
TOTAL EXPENDED (1,198.00)$ (134.00)$   (800.06)$  (951.30)$            (300.50)$ (1,425.00)$    -$          (42,200.00)$ (1,070.00)$  (1,485.20)$ (2,071.65)$   (1,241.12)$    (19,992.50)$  -$       (402.50)$             (633.55)$      (7,650.51)$      (6,400.40)$   (81,841.12)$  -$            (500.00)$    (7,720.24)$         
TOTAL REMAINING 77.00$        366.00$    (200.06)$  (51.30)$              (100.50)$ 1.00$            2,000.00$ 3,800.00$     (35.00)$       (585.20)$    428.35$       258.88$         7.50$             -$       3,697.50$            866.45$        (50.51)$           (350.40)$      16,244.88$   44,529.92$ 4,500.00$   10,254.76$        



Plumas LAFCO FY 18-19 Bookkeeping

Item
Account Number
Total Budgeted

SDRMA Insurance (5-15-18)
SDRMA Membership (5-15-18)
CALAFCO Membership (7-1-18)
PERS Unfunded Liability July 18
Gullixson Health Insurance July 18
Staff Svcs July
Benoit Staff Svcs July
CALAFCO Conf Registration
PERS Unfunded Liability Aug 18
PERS Unfunded Liability Sept 18
Gullixson Health Insurance Aug 18
Gullixson Health Insurance Sept 18
AT&T Aug 18
AT&T Sep 18
Staff Svcs Aug 18
Staff Svcs Sep 18
Benoit Staff Svcs July
CalPERS for GASB Report
Commisioner Mileage Aug 18
Feather Publishing (COI Notice) Oct 18
PERS Unfunded Liability Sept 18
Health Care-Gullixson Oct 18
Health Care-Gullixson Nov 18
AT&T Oct 18
Commissioner Mileage Oct 18
Feather Publishing Public Member Notice Oct 18
Staff Svcs October 2018
Pers unfunded liability Nov18 
AT&T (Nov 18)
Health Care-Gullixson Dec 18 
Benoit Staff Svcs October 2018
Feather Publishing EPHD Reorg Notice
Pers unfunded liability Dec 18
Staff Svcs November 2018
Health Care-Gullixson Jan 19
AT&T (Dec 18)
Commissioner Mileage Dec 18
Mountain Messenger Public Notice
Pers unfunded liability Jan 19
Staff Svcs December 2018
Benoit Staff Svcs December 2018
Plumas County Clerk Recorder - NOE
Plumas County Planning Staff Support
Health Care-Gullixson Feb 19
AT&T (Jan 19)
Pers unfunded liability Feb 19
Benoit Staff Svcs January 2019
Staff Svcs January 2019
Staff Svcs February 2019
Commissiong Mileage Feb 19
Pers unfunded liability Mar19
Health Care-Gullixson Mar 19
AT&T (Feb 19)
Health Care-Gullixson Apr 19
AT&T (Mar 19)
Feather Publishing (Cemetery SOI)
Feather Publishing (Budget Hearing)
Staff Svcs Mar 2019
Benoit Staff Svcs Mar 2019
Pers unfunded liability Apr19
Pers unfunded liability May19
Health Care-Gullixson May 19
Health Care-Gullixson June 19
AT&T (Apr 19)
AT&T (May 19)
Feather Publishing (Final Budget)
Commisioner Mileage Apr 19
Benoit Staff Svcs Apr May 2019
Staff Svcs Apr 19
Staff Svcs May 19
CSDA Membership
Pers unfunded liability Jun19
AT&T (Jun 19)
Staff Svcs Jun 19
Planning Staff Svcs
Commissioner Mileage Jun18

TOTAL EXPENDED
TOTAL REMAINING

IV Consolidation CHP Annex
File 2018-0002 File 2019-0001

$19,275 $10,675

(1,506.96)$         

(899.70)$            

(200.00)$            
(675.00)$            (225.00)$            

(2,063.86)$         

(180.00)$            
(250.00)$            

(200.00)$            
(315.00)$            

(90.00)$              (415.50)$            

(472.50)$            

(6,653.02)$         (840.50)$            
12,621.98$        9,834.50$          



Invoice #PLUMAS-2019-7
Policy Consulting Associates, LLC

39774 Via Careza 
Murrieta, CA 92563

(310) 936-2639
EIN #: 27-2523069

Date: August 5, 2019

Plumas LAFCO

520 Main St

Quincy, CA 96971

Staff Services
Hours Rate Amount

Jennifer Stephenson, Executive Officer $3,500 $3,500.00

Cheryl Kolb, Clerk (Minutes and agenda mailing) $172.50 $0.00

Cheryl Kolb, Clerk (Records digitization) 0.00 $35 $0.00

Dennis Miller, GIS $60 $0.00

Subtotal $3,500.00

Projects:  Applications, MSRs and SOI Updates
Hours Rate Amount

Jennifer Stephenson, Applications/Projects - File 2018-0002 & 2019-000118.50 90.00$       $1,665.00

Jennifer Stephenson, MSR and SOI Updates 0.00 90.00$       $0.00

Oxana Wolfson Analyst 0.00 80.00$       $0.00

Subtotal $1,665.00

Reimbursements
Reproduction Costs $0.00

Postage $0.00

Phone and Communications $27.98

Office Supplies  (folders and envelopes) $0.00

Mileage $0.00

Transportation and Travel $0.00

Subtotal $27.98

Amount Due $5,192.98

Please remit invoices to Policy Consulting Associates, LLC

8/5/19

Jennifer Stephenson, Principal Date



Date Hours Description Special Project
7/1/19

7/2/19

7/3/19 1 Response to inquires about Tax sharing agreements (File 2018-2) X

7/4/19

7/5/19 1 Response to resignation of Commissioner Sanchez

7/6/19

7/7/19

7/8/19

7/9/19

7/10/19

7/11/19 1.5 Development of public notice of public hearing (File 2018-2) X

7/12/19

7/13/19

7/14/19

7/15/19 1.75 Response to status inquiries (File 2019-0001) X

7/16/19

7/17/19

7/18/19

7/19/19

7/20/19

7/21/19

7/22/19

7/23/19 5.5 Editing of proposed changes of bylaws

7/24/19

7/25/19

7/26/19

7/27/19

7/28/19

7/29/19

7/30/19 7 Drafting of Staff Report (File 2018-2) X

7/31/19 7.25 Drafting of Resolutions (File 2018-2) X

Jennifer Stephenson July 2019 Timesheet



Invoice #PLUMAS-2019-6
Policy Consulting Associates, LLC

39774 Via Careza 
Murrieta, CA 92563

(310) 936-2639
EIN #: 27-2523069

Date: July 8, 2019

Plumas LAFCO
520 Main St
Quincy, CA 96971

Staff Services
Hours Rate Amount

Jennifer Stephenson, Executive Officer $3,500 $3,500.00
Cheryl Kolb, Clerk (Minutes and agenda mailing) $172.50 $172.50
Cheryl Kolb, Clerk (Records digitization) 0.00 $35 $0.00
Dennis Miller, GIS 3.50 $60 $210.00
Subtotal $3,882.50

Projects:  Applications, MSRs and SOI Updates
Hours Rate Amount

Jennifer Stephenson, Applications/Projects - File 2018-0002 & 2019-00015.25 90.00$       $472.50
Jennifer Stephenson, MSR and SOI Updates 10.75 90.00$       $967.50
Oxana Wolfson Analyst 0.00 80.00$       $0.00
Subtotal $1,440.00

Reimbursements
Reproduction Costs $85.26
Postage $9.89
Phone and Communications $27.98
Office Supplies  (folders and envelopes) $0.00
Mileage $0.00
Transportation and Travel $0.00
Subtotal $123.13

Amount Due $5,445.63

Please remit invoices to Policy Consulting Associates, LLC

7/8/19
Jennifer Stephenson, Principal Date



Date Hours Description Special Project
6/1/19 7.5 Development of agenda packet
6/2/19 3.75 Distribution and posting of agenda packet
6/3/19 1.25 Discussion with County re: tax sharing agreement (File 2018-0002) X
6/4/19
6/5/19
6/6/19
6/7/19
6/8/19
6/9/19 10.5 Travel and meeting preperation
6/10/19 5.25 Commission meeting, meeting with IVHD applicant and County X
6/11/19
6/12/19
6/13/19 2.5 Scanning and archiving of resolutions, posting on website
6/14/19
6/15/19
6/16/19 0.75 Follow up with SDRMA re: CSDA payment
6/17/19 2.5 Drafting SOI Update
6/18/19 2.75 SOI Mapping management
6/19/19
6/20/19 0.75 Follow up with County re: File 2018-0002 tax sharing X
6/21/19
6/22/19
6/23/19 5.5 SOI Update drafting
6/24/19
6/25/19
6/26/19
6/27/19
6/28/19
6/29/19
6/30/19 0.75 Follow up with applicant re: next steps (File 2018 - 0002) X

Jennifer Stephenson June 2019 Timesheet



















Staff Report – August 12, 2019 
Annexation to PHD & Dissolution of IVHD 

LAFCo File 2018-0002 

 1 

Plumas Hospital District and Indian Valley Healthcare District—Reorganization 
LAFCo File No. 2018-0002 

Summary 
The Boards of Directors of the Plumas Hospital District (EPHD) and Indian Valley Healthcare 

District (SVHD) (both are Hospital Districts) have submitted a proposal to reorganize the two 

districts. The proposal would result in the entirety of the territory within IVHD to be annexed into 

the PHD and the IVHD subsequently dissolved, ultimately transferring all services and assets to 

PHD. 

The reorganized district would contain the territory presently with the PHD and the area 

proposed for annexation within the IVHD.  A map showing the boundaries of the area proposed 

for annexation and inclusion in the sphere of influence of the reorganized PHD is included 

herein as Attachment 1.  The two resolutions initiating the proposal including Maps, a Plan for 

Services and Statement of Justification are included herein as Attachment 2 (PHD adopted 

Resolution 2018-3 on November 27, 2018; IVHD adopted Resolution 2018-1 on November 14, 

2018).   

 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Commission: 

1. After considering the proposed reorganization and its compliance with LAFCo law and 

Commission policy, approve the proposal, subject to conditions as set forth in the staff 

report and proposed Resolution 2019-0006 (Attachment 5).      
 
Suggested motions 

• Adopt proposed Resolution 2019-0005 adopting a Sphere of Influence amendment for 
the PHD and the IVHD. (Attachment 4) 
 

• Adopt proposed Resolution 2019-0006 approving this Annexation and determining that 
this proposed annexation to the Plumas Hospital District qualifies for an exemption to the 
California Environmental Quality Act under Class 20.  (Attachment 5) 
   

• Adopt proposed Resolution 2019-0007 dissolving the Indian Valley Healthcare District. 
(Attachment 6) 

 
Proposal and History 
The two districts are located in and around the American and Indian Valleys in Plumas County.  

Both agencies are empowered to provide healthcare services; however, IVHD no longer 

provides direct services.  PHD provides contract services to SVHD.  PHD currently operates the 

former IVHD facility as a rural health clinic with telemedicine and offers off-site laboratory 

access.   

The LAFCo Act encourages consolidations and provides that if district boards adopt 

substantially similar resolutions of application (for consolidation or reorganization) the 

commission shall approve or conditionally approve the proposal.  The Commission shall order 

the reorganization without an election, unless presented with a petition signed by 25% of the 

voters, or 25% of the number of landowners who own at least 25% of the assessed value of 

land within the territory.  The two agencies have been engaged in some joint operational 

activities through contract services as previously described. 

Jennifer Stephenson
Agenda Item #7



Staff Report – August 12, 2019 
Annexation to PHD & Dissolution of IVHD 

LAFCo File 2018-0002 

 2 

The Districts each adopted substantively similar Resolutions of Application for a reorganization 

that would reorganize the two districts; the terms and conditions set forth include annexation of 

all territory within IVHD by PHD, transfer of all assets, reserves, facilities, contracts and debt to 

the reorganized PHD, which is identified as the successor agency, and dissolution of IVHD.     

 

Organized Healthcare Services  
The two districts are empowered to provide a variety of healthcare services by Division 23, 

Chapter 2, Article 2 of the Health and Safety Code, Hospital District Law (commencing with 

Section 32000 et seq).   

PHD owns and operates Plumas District Hospital representing 25 licensed beds (23 general 

acute care and two perinatal), two rural health clinics and a dental clinic located in Quincy, and 

operates a rural health clinic at IVHD’s facility in Greenville, California. Hospital services include 

24-hour emergency care, obstetrics, surgery, outpatient laboratory and imaging, and respiratory 

therapy. Clinic services encompass family medicine, women’s health, nutrition services, 

counseling and subspecialties in telemedicine. Visiting on-site specialists include orthopedics, 

podiatry, urology neurology, neurosurgery, cardiology, gynecology, and pain management. 

As mentioned, PHD currently operates the former IVHD facility as a rural healthcare clinic, 

which offers primary care, obstetrics, internal medicine, preventive health services, 

management of chronic conditions, immunizations, dietary advice, diabetes education, 

counseling, telemedicine, and visiting specialists. 

IVHD is a member of the Indian Valley Ambulance Services Authority (IVASA), which is a joint 

powers agreement with Indian Valley Community Services District (IVCSD) to provide for 

ambulance services in Indian Valley.  IVASA contracts with PHI Cares to provide 24/7 ground 

service ambulance to the entire Indian Valley. This service is supplemented by a tax 

assessment annually collected by the IVASA organization through the IVCSD management.  

The JPA will require an amendment to transfer it to the newly reorganized district. 

Finances and Operations 
Both districts are primarily funded through charges for services with supplemental income 

coming from a small portion of the property tax collected within each district’s boundaries.   

Concerns about ensuring that the debts and obligations or any infrastructure deficiencies of the 

respective districts are borne by the customers residing in the territory of the respective districts 

have prompted the Boards to consider establishing separate benefit zones so that costs may be 

allocated to the appropriate zone.  The Board of the Reorganized District will determine if zones 

or areas of benefit are necessary to account for each area’s revenues and expenditures. 

On February 1, 2018, the Indian Valley Healthcare District refinanced its long-term debt with a 

Refunding Revenue Bond.  That bond is secured and amortized by its annual AB 8 Healthcare 

Apportionment.  The bond service is structured so that the apportionment is sent by Plumas 

County directly to the bond trustee, US Bank in San Francisco.  The required funds are 

removed to meet the bond’s obligations, returning the balance to IVHD.  The guaranteed nature 

of this bond service procedure must be maintained as it has a direct impact on the value of the 

bonds in the terms and conditions approved by LAFCo. 

 

Property Tax Apportionment 
Because this proposal is an annexation of additional territory, the property tax apportionment is 

subject to the provisions in the Revenue and Taxation Code Sections 99 and 99.1.  As such, 

PHD and the County of Plumas came to a tax sharing agreement, which were adopted in 

Resolution 19-8147 by the Plumas County Board of Supervisors and Resolution 2019-2 by the 



Staff Report – August 12, 2019 
Annexation to PHD & Dissolution of IVHD 

LAFCo File 2018-0002 

 3 

PHD Board of Directors.  In FY 2018-2019, IVHD was apportioned $208,292 in tax revenue.  

This revenue and any growth in tax revenue will be transferred to the newly reorganized district.  

 

Provisional Appropriations Limit 
In 1979, voters passed Proposition 4, establishing what is referred to as the “Gann Limit.”  Also 

known as an “appropriations limit,” this is the maximum amount of tax proceeds that an agency 

may spend each fiscal year (note: the Gann Limit does not apply to revenues from 

assessments, fees or rates).  Pursuant to Section 7902.7 and Article XIIIB of the State 

Constitution, the Commission can set a provisional appropriations limit for a reorganized district.  

As a condition of the reorganization it is recommended that the Commission transfer the existing 

appropriations limit of the Indian Valley Healthcare District to the successor Plumas Hospital 

District, as the agency’s provisional appropriations limit, as of the effective date of this 

reorganization. The permanent appropriation limit will be established by the Plumas Hospital 

District Board of Directors within the first fiscal year of operations following the effective date of 

this reorganization.  Once the permanent limit is established, the district will adjust it annually 

based on a formula involving population growth and the Consumer Price Index. 

 

Personnel 
PHD provides all personnel that operate the IVHD facility.  As such, transfer of employees does 

not need to be considered as part of the conditions for transfer of services from IVHD to PHD. 

 

Sphere of Influence 
The Sphere of Influence for Plumas Hospital District was last updated as being coterminous 

with its bounds in Resolution 2016-0005 on August 8, 2016.  Government Code Section 

56375.5 requires that annexations be consistent with an agency’s Sphere of Influence.  

Consquently, in order for the Commission to approve the proposed annexation, PHD’s Sphere 

of Influence must be amended for consistency with the proposed reorganization area.  The 

Commission will consider the amended Sphere of Influence in Resolution 2018-0005 following 

the noticed Public Hearing on August 12, 2019. 

 
Boundary 
The boundaries for the reorganized PHD will consist of the PHD’s existing boundaries and the 

territory presently within IVHD. 

 
CEQA Compliance 
The Plumas Hospital District, acting as Lead Agency, has determined the annexation qualifies 

for Categorical Exemption to CEQA under Class 20 – Changes in the organization or 

reorganization of local governmental agencies where the changes do not change the 

geographical area in which previously existing powers are exercised.  The District has filed a 

Notice of Exemption.  LAFCo staff concurs with the District’s determination, and has included 

direction to staff to also file a Notice of Exemption in the proposed draft resolution. (Attachment 
3). 

 



Staff Report – August 12, 2019 
Annexation to PHD & Dissolution of IVHD 

LAFCo File 2018-0002 

 4 

Compliance with Applicable Plans 
The County of Plumas, is the applicable land use authority. The territory includes a variety of 

land uses, including various types of residential development, commercial, industrial, public 

facilities, agricultural, and open space.  Note that the proposed consolidation will not directly 

affect existing or future land uses.   

The proposed consolidation does not conflict with the General Plan of the land use authority.  

 

Terms and Conditions 
As noted above, in line with the legislature’s directive to encourage reorganizations that result in 

consolidations, the Commission must approve or conditionally approve the proposal. LAFCo 

staff has reviewed the requested terms and conditions contained within the initiating resolutions 

adopted by the two applicants, and recommends the Commission incorporate all of them.  In 

addition, staff recommends several additional conditions:    

• The property tax apportionment to the reorganized PHD shall be as adopted in the tax 

sharing agreement approved by the Sierra County Board of Supervisors and the PHD 

Board of Directors. 

• The current appropriations limit of the IVHD shall be transferred to PHD. 

• The Board of the IVHD shall make provisions for appointment of two members to the 

PHD Board until such time as the Board terms expire and the Board of the reorganized 

district is reduced to five members.   

• The indebtedness of each District shall remain the legal obligation of only the lands and 

areas which incurred such indebtedness.  The Refunding Revenue Bonds Series 2018 

shall be transferred to the PHD but continue to be paid by ad valorem property taxes 

collected by Plumas County within the Indian Valley Healthcare District area.   

• PHD may, at its discretion, establish zones to ensure that the debts and obligations or 

any infrastructure deficiencies of the respective districts are borne by the customers 

residing in the territory of the respective districts. 

• The agreement for the Indian Valley Ambulance Services Authority is to be amended to 

account for a name change from Indian Valley Healthcare District to Plumas Hospital 

District. 

 

GOVERNING LAW AND LAFCo POLICY 
Generally, Government Code §56000 et seq. governs proceedings.  The proposal largely 

complies with LAFCo’s legal and policy requirements, as summarized below: 

 
 



Staff Report – August 12, 2019 
Annexation to PHD & Dissolution of IVHD 

LAFCo File 2018-0002 

 5 

GOVERNING LAW 
LAFCo is charged with applying the policies and provisions of the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act 

to its decisions regarding annexations, incorporations, reorganizations, and other changes of 

government.  

Factors to be considered in the review of a proposal shall include, but not be limited to, all of the 

following Section 56668 of the Government Code: 

 

• Population, and population density; land area and land use; per capita assessed 
valuation; topography, natural boundaries, and drainage basins; proximity to other 
populated areas; the likelihood of significant growth in the area, and in adjacent 
incorporated and unincorporated areas, during the next 10 years. 

The territory is inhabited, and includes a wide variety of land uses and designations. The 
area includes developed unincorporated communities – one of which is the county seat.  
Because the subject territory has portions where water and sewer services are provided, 
the area can be expected to grow at a faster pace than other areas of the County.  

• The need for organized community services; the present cost and adequacy of 
governmental services and controls in the area; probable future needs for those 
services and controls; probable effect of the proposed incorporation; formation, 
annexation, or exclusion and of alternative courses of action on the cost and 
adequacy of services and controls in the area and adjacent areas.  “Services,” as 
used in this subdivision, refers to governmental services whether or not the services 
are services, which would be provided by local agencies subject to this division, and 
includes the public facilities necessary to provide those services. 

The subject area is remotely located with limited healthcare service options provided 
entirely by the two applicant districts.  There is a demand for these services as there are 
few options within the nearby communities.  The proposal aims to consolidate these 
services under a single provider to enhance efficiency of services.  Under the terms of 
the proposed reorganization, the services, facilities, equipment, revenues, expenses, 
and contractual obligations of the IVHD will be transferred to PHD as the successor 
agency.   

• The effect of the proposed action and of alternative actions, on adjacent areas, on 
mutual social and economic interests, and on the local governmental structure of the 
county. 

The proposed reorganization is not expected to result in noticeable impacts on other 
agencies or result in adverse impacts on various social and economic interests.   

• The conformity of both the proposal and its anticipated effects with both the adopted 
commission policies on providing planned, orderly, efficient patterns, of urban 
development, and the policies and priorities set forth in Section 56377. 

Analysis of the project’s consistency with adopted LAFCo policies is addressed in a 
subsequent section of this report.   

• The effect of the proposal on maintaining the physical and economic integrity of 
agricultural lands, as defined by Section 56016. 

The proposed reorganization of the two agencies does not include expansion of the 
current service areas.   The current levels of development in the area are not expected 
to be directly affected by this proposal, and it is therefore unlikely that current agricultural 
uses within the area will be affected. 



Staff Report – August 12, 2019 
Annexation to PHD & Dissolution of IVHD 

LAFCo File 2018-0002 

 6 

• The definiteness and certainty of the boundaries of the territory, the nonconformance 
of proposed boundaries with lines of assessment or ownership, the creation of 
islands or corridors of unincorporated territory, and other similar matters affecting 
the proposed boundaries. 

The boundaries of the subject territory include the entire territory within.  The boundaries 
of the proposed annexation area are clearly defined in the map of the annexation area 
(Attachment 1). 

• Consistency with city or county general and specific plans. 
As discussed in the above section on Planning Consistency, the current land use does 
not conflict with the General Plan of Plumas County.   

• The Sphere of Influence of any local agency which may be applicable to the proposal 
being reviewed. 

As discussed in the above section on Sphere of Influence, for consistency the PHD’s 
SOI must be amended to include the proposed annexation area prior to approval of the 
application.  At present, PHD’s SOI is contiguous to its boundaries.  

• The comments of any affected local agency or other public agency. 
No comments have been received to date.   

• The ability of the newly formed or receiving entity to provide the services which area 
the subject of the application to the area, including the sufficiency of revenues for 
those services following the proposed boundary change. 

The level of services currently provided within the area is not expected to change; all 
current operational revenues will be transferred to the successor district, which will be 
empowered to utilize its resources in the same manner as currently exercised.  

• The extent to which the proposal will affect a city or cities and the county in 
achieving their respective fair shares of the regional housing needs as determined by 
the appropriate council of governments consistent with Article 10.6 (commencing 
with section 65580) of Chapter 3 of Division 1 of Title 7. 

This proposal will neither assist nor detract from the County’s ability to achieve its RHNA 
targets.   

• Any information or comments from the landowner or owners, voters, or residents of 
the affected territory. 

No comments have been received to date.   
• Any information relating to existing land use designations. 

This issue is discussed in detail in a preceding section of the report.   
• The extent to which the proposal will promote environmental justice. As used in this 

subdivision, "environmental justice" means the fair treatment of people of all races, 
cultures, and incomes with respect to the location of public facilities and the 
provision of public services. 

Because no change in the present use of the property will result from the reorganization, 
this proposal will neither promote nor detract from environmental justice.  



Staff Report – August 12, 2019 
Annexation to PHD & Dissolution of IVHD 

LAFCo File 2018-0002 

 7 

PLUMAS LAFCo GENERAL & SPECIFIC POLICIES 
Plumas LAFCo policy is to evaluate proposals for consolidation in the same manner it evaluates 

district formation; after reviewing the Plan for Services and other data, the Commission will 

determine whether the districts’ organizations and operations can be feasibly combined.   

General Policies:   

Communication between local agencies is encouraged. Consistent 
Urban development proposals shall include annexation to a city or district 
where possible. Not 

Applicable The proposal to reorganize two existing districts into a single district is not 
an urban development proposal.   

LAFCo will discourage urban sprawl and will normally deny proposals that 
result in sprawl. 

Consistent 
This reorganization will not result in urban sprawl as characterized in LAFCo 
policy.    

Environmental consequences (CEQA) shall be considered. 
Consistent The Plumas Hospital District is acting as Lead Agency for the project and 

has determined it to be categorically exempt from the provisions of CEQA.   
LAFCo will encourage applications that improve the regional balance 
between jobs and housing. Not 

Applicable This proposal will neither improve nor detract from the regional jobs/housing 
balance.   

LAFCo will favor proposals that promote compact urban form and infill 
development. 

Consistent This reorganization will not directly result in an increase in the area’s level of 
development.  However, the proposal will ensure the continued level of 
services within the territory.  Stability of service will tend to promote compact 
urban form and infill development in the area. 

Government structure should be simple, accessible, and accountable. 
Consistent Both applicant districts appear to be accessible and accountable, and the 

proposed reorganization has been conducted in an open and public manner.         
Agencies must provide documentation that they can provide service 
within a reasonable period of time. 

Consistent The applicant agencies have provided documentation, including a Plan for 
Services that indicate the new agency will be capable of continuing the 
present level of service to the subject territory.  

Efficient services are obtained when proposals: 
a. Utilize existing public agencies. 
b. Consolidate activities and services.  
c. Restructure agency boundaries to provide more logical, effective, and 

efficient services. Consistent 
This proposal will consolidate the organizations, facilities and services 
currently provided by the applicant districts to ensure continued efficient 
service provision.  The annexation of the entirety of the territory of IVHD will 
allow for logical boundaries.   

Adverse impacts on adjacent areas, social and economic interests and the 
local government structure must be mitigated. Consistent 



Staff Report – August 12, 2019 
Annexation to PHD & Dissolution of IVHD 

LAFCo File 2018-0002 

 8 

There do not appear to be adverse impacts, which require mitigation.      

Conformance with general and specific plans required. 
Consistent 

The proposal does not conflict with the General Plan of Plumas County.   

Boundaries: 
a. Definite boundaries are required.  
b. Boundaries that are favored: 

• Create logical boundaries & eliminate islands or illogical 
boundaries. 

• Follow natural or man-made features and include logical service 
areas. 

c.  Boundaries that are disfavored: 
• Split neighborhoods or communities. 
• Result in islands, corridors, or peninsulas. 
• Are drawn for the primary purpose of encompassing revenue- 

producing territories. 
• Create areas where it is difficult to provide services. 

Consistent 

The boundaries of the proposed annexation area are clearly defined in the 
map of the annexation area (Attachment 1).  The annexation area is 
proposed to facilitate logical boundaries of the reorganized district. 

Revenue neutrality is required for all proposals. Consistent 
Agricultural and Open Space Land conservation standards are: 
a. The proposal must lead to planned, orderly and efficient development. 
b. An approved Sphere of Influence Plan is required. 
c. Findings with respect to alternative sites are required. 
d. Impact on adjacent agricultural/open space lands must be assessed. 

Not 
Applicable 

As discussed in the above section on Planning Consistency, this proposal 
will not result in conversion of Agricultural or Open Space lands. 

Need for services must be established, and exists when: 
a. A public health and safety threat exists. 
b. The residents have requested extension of non-growth-inducing 

community services. 
c. The subject area is likely to be developed for urban use within 5 years. Consistent 

The applicant agencies already provide service to the subject territory.  The 
proposed reorganization will ensure the subject territory continues to receive 
an efficient level of service.  

Exceptions are justified on the following grounds: 
a. Unique 
b. Standards conflicts 
c. Quality/Cost 
d. No alternative is available 

 



Staff Report – August 12, 2019 
Annexation to PHD & Dissolution of IVHD 

LAFCo File 2018-0002 

 9 

CONSOLIDATION POLICIES 
Consistency with LAFCO policies required Consistent 
Unmet Needs.   

District formation encouraged in areas with a need for services that are not 
met by an existing agency. 

Not 
Applicable 

Plan for services required. 

Consistent The two applicant districts have provided a comprehensive and adequate 
plan for service, which assures the continuation of existing services at the 
same or improved level.   

LAFCo will establish the service pattern 
Consistent The Commission will establish the service pattern by adoption of a 

resolution on the proposal.         
Consistency (with general and applicable specific plans) required 

Consistent The reorganization of the two districts will not conflict with the General Plan 
nor with any specific plans of the County.  

Conflicts (with other agencies) not permitted.   Consistent 
Public benefit considered 

Consistent A discussion of the public benefits associated with the reorganization is 
included in the Remarks and Conclusion of the LAFCo staff report.   

Fiscal Solvency required. 
Consistent Consolidation of the two agencies will ensure sustained fiscal solvency.   

County Service Area Formation Requirements Not 
Applicable 

 
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC AND FROM AFFECTED AGENCIES 
No unfavorable comments or objections have been received from agencies affected by the 

proposal or from the public.    

Remarks and Conclusion 
Given that PHD is already providing contract services at IVHD’s facility, this reorganization is a 

logical next step that aligns with the LAFCo purpose of ensuring efficient services.  Services 

would continue to be provided at the same level as current services, and the reorganization 

would streamline governance and service delivery by eliminating an extra governing body.   

The proposed reorganization does not appear to result in any adverse impacts on any other 

agency’s ability to provide services.  The proposal is consistent with LAFCo law and 

Commission policy.   

Staff recommends approval of the Sphere of Influence amendment, annexation of the IVHD 

territory to the PHD, transfer of all IVHD services and resources to the PHD as the successor 

agency, and concurrent dissolution of IVHD, and has prepared draft resolutions (Attachments 
4, 5, and 6) to that effect.    

cc:  Plumas Hospital District 

Indian Valley Healthcare District 



Jennifer Stephenson
Attachment 1





Jennifer Stephenson
Attachment 2









































NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 
Exhibit B 

TO:  County Clerk 
  County of Plumas 
   
 
FROM:  Plumas LAFCO 
  5050 Laguna Blvd #112-711 
  Elk Grove, CA 95758 
 
PROJECT TITLE: Sphere of Influence Amendment for Plumas Hospital District 

to include the entire territory currently within Indian Valley 
Healthcare District 

 
PROJECT LOCATION: Indian Valley 
 
DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT: 
 
The proposed project involves an amendment of the Sphere of Influence of Plumas Hospital District to 
include territory presently within Indian Valley Healthcare District 
 
NAME OF PUBLIC AGENCY APPROVING PROJECT: 
 
Plumas Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
NAME OF PERSON OR AGENCY CARRYING OUT THE PROJECT: 
 
Jennifer Stephenson, Plumas Local Agency Formation Commission 
  
EXEMPT STATUS: 
 
Class 20 Categorical Exemption, “Changes in Organization of Local Agencies”  CEQA Guideline Section 
15320 and 15061b (3) General Rule Exemption. 
 
REASONS WHY THIS PROJECT IS EXEMPT: 
 
This action is Exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Section 15320 of the 
CEQA Guidelines (Class 20) as the changes would not result in any change in permitted use and 15061 b 
(3) whereby this action is covered by the general rule that CEQA applies only to project which have the 
potential for causing a significant effect on the environment. Since this Sphere of Influence is not 
expanding territory where healthcare services are being provided, there is no possibility that this Sphere 
may have a significant effect on the environment since the services are already provided within the territory 
and no unusual circumstances exist. 
 
CONTACT PERSON:   TELEPHONE NUMBER: 
Jennifer Stephenson   (530) 283-7069 
LAFCO Executive Officer 
 
By:______________________________  Date: August 12, 2019 
 
 

Jennifer Stephenson


Jennifer Stephenson
Attachment 3



NOTICE OF EXEMPTION   
 
TO:  County Clerk 
  County of PLUMAS 
 
FROM:  Plumas LAFCo 
  5050 Laguna Blvd #112-711 
  Elk Grove, CA 95758 
 
 
PROJECT TITLE: Plumas LAFCo File 2018-0002: Annexation of Indian 

Valley Healthcare District Territory by Plumas Hospital 
District and Dissolution of Indian Valley Healthcare 
District 

 
PROJECT LOCATION: Indian Valley Area in Plumas County 
 
DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT: 
 
The proposed project involves an annexation of the entirety of the territory within Indian Valley 
Healthcare District by Plumas Hospital District and concurrent dissolution of the Indian Valley 
Healthcare District 
 
NAME OF PUBLIC AGENCY APPROVING PROJECT: 
 
Plumas Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
NAME OF PERSON OR AGENCY CARRYING OUT THE PROJECT: 
 
Plumas Local Agency Formation Commission 
  
EXEMPT STATUS: 
 
Class 20 Categorical Exemption, “Changes in Organization of Local Agencies,” CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15320 per Public Resources Code Section 21084 and 14 CCR 15320(b) as a project 
determined not to have a significant effect on the environment 
 
REASONS WHY THIS PROJECT IS EXEMPT: 
 
This action is Exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Section 15301b 
of the CEQA Guidelines (Class 20) as the formation would not result in any change in services 
since the these districts already serve the affected territory and 15061 b (3) whereby this activity 
is covered by the general rule that CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential for 
causing a significant effect on the environment. Since this formation is only affirming existing 
functions (healthcare services), there is no possibility that this activity may have a significant 
effect on the environment since the services are already provided and no unusual circumstances 
exist as a result of this reorganization. 
 
CONTACT PERSON:   TELEPHONE NUMBER: 
Jennifer Stephenson   (530) 283-7069 
LAFCO Executive Officer 
 
By:______________________________  Date: August 12, 2019 



   
Resolution 2019-0005 

Of the 
P l u m a s  L o c a l  A g e n c y  F o r m a t i o n  C o m m i s s i o n  

in 
Plumas County, California 

Making Determinations and Approving an Amendment to the Sphere of Influence of Plumas 
Hospital District  

 
WHEREAS, a joint application was filed with the Executive Officer of the Plumas Local Agency Forma-
tion Commission by two Hospital Districts organized under the provisions of Health and Safety Code 
Section 32000, et seq, the Plumas Hospital District (“PHD”) and the Indian Valley Hospital District 
(“IVHD”).  The application proposes a reorganization where the entirety of the territory within IVHD would 
be annexed into the PHD and the IVHD subsequently dissolved.  Said application complied with all the 
requirements of law and the Commission; and, 
WHEREAS, the Sphere of Influence for Plumas Hospital District was last updated as being coterminous 
with its bounds in Resolution 2016-0005 on August 8, 2016; and 
WHEREAS, Government Code Section 56375.5 requires that annexations be consistent with an 
agency’s Sphere of Influence; and 
WHEREAS, the Commission has set the hearing date of August 12, 2019 for the amendment of Plumas 
Hospital District’s Sphere of Influence and has noticed this hearing at the times and as otherwise 
prescribed by Government Code Section 56150, et seq.; and 
WHEREAS, the Commission has heard and adopted a Municipal Services Review of services provided 
by the Plumas Hospital District and adopted Resolution 2015-0001 on June 8, 2015 in accordance with 
Gov. Code section 56430; and 
WHEREAS, the Commission has reviewed and considered the proposed Sphere of Influence which is 
shown in the Sphere of Influence Map which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “A” ; 
and 
WHEREAS, Plumas LAFCO has prepared and adopted a Notice of Exemption pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act since the Sphere of Influence will not result in 
new areas served (Section 21000 et seq. of the Public Resources Code); and 
WHEREAS, the Commission has considered those factors determined by it to be relevant to the 
proposed Sphere of Influence, including, but not limited to, those factors specified in Government Code 
Section 56425, et seq.; and 
WHEREAS, the Commission has heard all interested parties desiring to be heard at the public hearing 
and considered the application and report by the Executive Officer and all other relevant evidence and 
information presented at said hearing;  
NOW, THEREFORE, the Plumas Local Agency Formation Commission determines the following: 
1. That the proposed Sphere of Influence with respect to Plumas Hospital District complies with the 

provisions of Government Code Section 56000, et seq. 
 
2. That the amendment of this Sphere of Influence for Plumas Hospital District as shown in Exhibit 

“A” is hereby adopted. 
 
3. That, pursuant to Government Code Section 56425, the Commission makes and adopts those 

determinations regarding Plumas Hospital District as set forth in the Sphere of Influence Update 
Study dated August 8, 2016, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

 
 

Jennifer Stephenson
Attachment 4



PHD SOI Amendment 
LAFCo file 2018-0002 Resolution 2019-0005 
Plumas LAFCo August 12, 2019 

2 

4. The Commission has reviewed and considered a Notice of Exemption (Exhibit B) prepared for 
this Sphere of Influence Update and makes a specific finding that there is no substantial evidence 
in light of the whole record before Plumas Local Agency Formation Commission that 
establishment of this Sphere of Influence for Plumas Hospital District may have a significant 
adverse effect on the environment. 

 
 
The foregoing resolution was duly passed by the Plumas Local Agency Formation Commission at a 
regular meeting held on August 12, 2019, by the following roll call vote: 

Ayes:   

Noes:  

Abstentions:   

Absent:   
Signed and approved by me after its passage this 12th day of August, 2019. 

   
Tom Cooley, Chair, Plumas LAFCo 

Attest: 
  
Jennifer Stephenson, Executive Officer 



   
Resolution 2019-0006 

Of the 
P l u m a s  L o c a l  A g e n c y  F o r m a t i o n  C o m m i s s i o n  

in 
Plumas County, California 

Making Determinations and Approving Annexation of Indian Valley Healthcare District to Plumas 
Hospital District 

 
WHEREAS, a joint application was filed with the Executive Officer of the Plumas Local Agency 
Formation Commission by two Hospital Districts organized under the provisions of Government Code 
Section 32000, et seq, the Plumas Hospital District (“PHD”) and the Indian Valley Healthcare District 
(“IVHD”).  The application proposes a reorganization where the entirety of the territory within IVHD would 
be annexed into the PHD and the IVHD subsequently dissolved, therefore transferring all services to 
PHD.  Said application complied with all the requirements of law and the Commission; and, 
WHEREAS, the proceedings for this reorganization are governed by the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local 
Government Reorganization Act of 2000, Section 56000 et seq. of the Government Code; and, 
WHEREAS, the applicants are located in Plumas County; and 
WHEREAS, the Commission has heard and adopted a Municipal Service Review of services provided by 
the Plumas Hospital District and adopted Resolution 2015-0001 on June 8, 2015 in accordance with 
Government Code Section 56430; and 
WHEREAS, in Resolution 2016-0005 on August 8, 2016 the Commission made the required 
determinations regarding the four factors relevant to determining spheres of influence identified in 
Government Code Section 56425; and, 
WHEREAS, Plumas Hospital District’s Sphere of Influence, as amended in Resolution 2019-0005 is 
consistent with the proposed annexation as required by Government Code Section 56375.5; and 
WHEREAS, the Districts have jointly developed a Plan for Service that sets forth the terms of the 
reorganization and transfer of service, including transfer of assets, property, personnel and equipment; 
and, 
WHEREAS, the Plumas Hospital District, acting as the Lead Agency for this project in accordance with 
the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act, has reviewed the reorganization proposal and 
has found that it qualifies for exemption under Class 20: Changes in Organization of Local Agencies, 
where the changes do not change the annexation area in which previously existing powers are exercised 
and that it will not result in adverse changes to the environment nor to the level or scope of services 
provided; and, 
WHEREAS, at the time and in the manner provided by law, the Executive Officer gave notice of the date, 
time, and place of a public hearing by the Commission upon said application, including mailed notice to 
affected and subject agencies and published notice in several newspapers of general circulation in order 
to that ensure agencies, affected citizens and landowners were aware of the proposal; and, 
WHEREAS, the Executive Officer has reviewed the application and has prepared a report including staff 
recommendations thereon within the time required by law and has furnished copies of said report to the 
Commission and to all other persons required by law to receive it; and, 
WHEREAS, the Commission has heard all interested parties desiring to be heard at the public hearing 
and considered the application and report by the Executive Officer and all other relevant evidence and 
information presented at said hearing;  
NOW, THEREFORE, the Plumas Local Agency Formation Commission determines the following: 
1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 
2. The territory comprises approximately 494 square miles more or less and is found to be inhabited. 

Jennifer Stephenson
Attachment 5



PHD Annexation of IVHD Territory 
LAFCo file 2018-0002 Resolution 2019-0006 
Plumas LAFCo August 12, 2019 

2 

3. The Commission adopts the determinations regarding consistency with LAFCo Policies contained in 
the staff report for this reorganization and incorporates them by reference herein. 

4. The change of organization is assigned the following distinctive short-term designation:  
Annexation of Indian Valley Healthcare District by Plumas Hospital District and Dissolution of 
Indian Valley Healthcare District (Plumas LAFCo File No. 2018-0002) 

5. The Commission concurs with and affirms the Plumas Hospital District finding that this project 
qualifies for a Categorical Exemption to CEQA under Class 20 - Changes in the organization or 
reorganization of local governmental agencies where the changes do not change the annexation 
area in which previously existing powers are exercised. 

6. The boundaries, as set forth in this reorganization (or as amended by action of the Commission), are 
hereby approved as submitted and are as described in Exhibits  “A” Boundary Description and “B” 
Map attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein subject to the terms and conditions 
included. 

7. This reorganization consists of the following jurisdictional changes: 

• Plumas Hospital District – Annexation of Indian Valley Healthcare District and assumption of 
services 

• Indian Valley Healthcare District – Dissolution and transfer of services 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Commission resolves and orders the following: 
1. Conditions 

1.1. Approval of Proposal 
The proposal is a reorganization where the entirety of the territory within IVHD would be 
annexed into the Plumas Hospital District and the Indian Valley Healyhcare District subsequently 
dissolved, ultimately transferring all services to the Plumas Hospital District.  In addition to 
LAFCo’s Terms and Conditions, this reorganization shall be subject to terms and conditions as 
stated in the initiating resolutions included in the following documents all of which documents are 
by this reference incorporated herein:   

• Resolution 2018-3 adopted November 27, 2018 by the Plumas Hospital District;  

• Resolution 2018-1 adopted November 14, 2018, by the Indian Valley Healthcare District; 

• Plan for Services developed by the Plumas Hospital District and the Indian Valley 
Healthcare District as set forth in Resolutions 2018-3 (PHD) and 2018-1 (IVHD). 

1.2. Transfer of Services 
The authority of Indian Valley Healthcare District to provide healthcare services (as defined in 
Division 23, Chapter 2, Article 2 of the Health and Safety Code) is hereby transferred to the 
Plumas Hospital District entirely, and the Plumas Hospital District is hereby designated as the 
“successor agency” to the Indian Valley Healthcare District with respect to such services.  
Plumas Hospital District shall succeed to all licenses, permits and authorities and all obligations 
and responsibilities of the Indian Valley Healthcare District.  In addition, all assets including 
financial and fixed assets shall be transferred to the Plumas Hospital District. 
 

1.3  Benefit Zones 
Pursuant to Item 8 in the Resolutions of Application adopted by the two districts, the reorganized 
district may include service zones, areas of benefit, and/or such other structure as may be 
determined necessary by the Plumas Hospital District. 



PHD Annexation of IVHD Territory 
LAFCo file 2018-0002 Resolution 2019-0006 
Plumas LAFCo August 12, 2019 

3 

These service divisions, areas (zones) of benefit, and/or such other structure are to ensure that 
the debts and obligations of the respective Reorganized and/or Dissolved Districts are borne by 
the customers residing in the territory which incurred the debt or obligation. If desired by the 
Plumas Hospital District Board of Directors, any service zones, areas of benefit, or other 
structures shall correspond to the existing service territory of the annexed portion of the Indian 
Valley Healthcare District and existing Plumas Hospital District.  
 

1.4 Effective Date 
This reorganization shall be effective upon the recordation of this Certificate of Completion, 
which shall take place after compliance with the terms and conditions stated in this resolution, or 
January 1st, 2020, whichever is earlier. 

 
2. Financial Conditions 

2.1 Transfer of Property 
After the effective date of this resolution, all resources and assets of Indian Valley Healthcare 
District, including facilities, equipment, fixtures, tools, vehicles, real property, as well as 
management and control thereof, will be transferred to and accepted by the Plumas Hospital 
District upon the effective date of this reorganization.  The Plumas Hospital District will accept 
such assets “as-is” with all leases or other liabilities attached thereto.  

2.2 Transfer of Revenues, Expenses, Assets and Fund Balances 
After the effective date of this reorganization, the revenues, expenses, assets and fund balances 
of the Indian Valley Healthcare District will be transferred to the Plumas Hospital District.    

2.3 Property Tax Transfer 
As specified in the Resolutions of Application, after the effective date of this reorganization, all 
revenues from property tax collected within and attributable to the jurisdiction of the Indian Valley 
Healthcare District shall be transferred to the Plumas Hospital District upon the effective date of 
this reorganization. 

2.4 Transfer of Previously Authorized Special Taxes and Assessments and Associated Fund 
Balances 

All special taxes and assessments, and any associated fund balances, levied for the purpose of 
providing healthcare services, are hereby continued, the and authority to administer any tax and 
(or) assessment is transferred to the Plumas Hospital District. 

2.5 Property Tax Exchange 
As stated in the LAFCO Staff Report of August 12, 2019, the amount of base property tax and tax 
increment transferred shall be in accordance with Plumas County Board of Supervisor’s 
Resolution 19-8417 herein attached as Exhibit C and Plumas Hospital District  Resolution 2019-2 
herein attached as Exhibit D.  

2.6 Use of Assessment Roll 
The regular county assessment roll will be utilized for this change of organization. 

2.7 Appropriations Limit 
Pursuant to Section 7902.7 and Article XIIIB of the State Constitution, the Commission hereby 
transfers the existing appropriations limit of the Indian Valley Healthcare District to the successor 



PHD Annexation of IVHD Territory 
LAFCo file 2018-0002 Resolution 2019-0006 
Plumas LAFCo August 12, 2019 

4 

Plumas Hospital District, as the agency’s provisional appropriations limit, as of the effective date 
of this reorganization. 

2.8 Bonded Indebtedness 
As specified in the Resolutions of Application, the indebtedness of each District shall remain the 
legal obligation of only the lands and areas which incurred such indebtedness.  The Refunding 
Revenue Bonds Series 2018 shall be paid by ad valorem property taxes collected by Plumas 
County within the Indian Valley Healthcare District territory.   
 

3 Operational Conditions 
3.6 Ordinances and Resolutions 

All Plumas Hospital District ordinances, resolutions, policies and fee schedules are hereby 
extended to the entirety of its territory upon annexation. 

3.7 Service Plan 
The Plan for Services provided in the Resolutions of Application submitted by the Plumas 
Hospital District and the Indian Valley Healthcare District shall guide the Board of Directors of 
the Plumas Hospital District as to the manner in which services are provided in the affected 
territory.  

3.8 Board of Directors 
The Board of Directors shall initially be increased to seven members.  As terms expire, the 
number of directors shall be reduced through attrition to five elected at large.  Initially, the two 
additional members will be appointed by the Plumas Hospital District residing within the 
annexation territory.    

 
4 Spheres of Influence 

4.6 Sphere of Influence 
The Sphere of Influence Plan for the Reorganized Plumas Hospital District will include the 
territory presently within Plumas Hospital District and the territory to be annexed within the 
Indian Valley Healthcare District consisting of 494 square miles more or less as adopted on 
August 12, 2019 in Resolution 2019-0005. 
 

5 Commission Directions to Staff 

5.6 LAFCo is the conducting authority for this reorganization. In accordance with the provisions of 
Section 57000 of the Government Code and with Plumas LAFCo Policies, the Commission 
hereby directs the Executive Officer to schedule a protest hearing for this matter after the 
expiration of the reconsideration period specified by Section 56895; to conduct the hearing for 
this reorganization; and, upon completion of the hearing, to take action as appropriate in 
accordance with LAFCo Policies and the requirements of Chapter 3, Part 4 of Division 3 of the 
California Government Code. 
5.7 The Executive Officer is hereby directed to transmit a certified copy of this resolution to each 

affected agency, as provided for in Government Code Section 56882. 
5.8 The Executive Officer is hereby directed to file a Notice of Exemption meeting the 

requirements of of CEQA 



PHD Annexation of IVHD Territory 
LAFCo file 2018-0002 Resolution 2019-0006 
Plumas LAFCo August 12, 2019 

5 

5.9 Five sets of copies of all exhibit maps and geographic or metes and bounds descriptions, two 
8 1/2 reductions of all maps and electronic copies in PDF format meeting the state Board of 
Equalization Requirements shall be submitted to LAFCO prior to the recordation of the 
Certificate of Completion. All maps and boundary descriptions shall comply with the State 
Board of Equalization requirements. Any boundary description and (or) map, if rejected by 
the State Board of Equalization or amended by LAFCO, will be revised at the expense of the 
applicant. The applicant shall be responsible for all associated costs. The boundary 
description and map if amended by action of the Commission will be revised and checked at 
the expense of the applicant, prior to filing of the Certificate of Completion.  The Boundary 
Description and Map must contain the following information:  Plumas LAFCO File 2018-0002 
Annexation of Indian Valley Healthcare District by Plumas Hospital District and Dissolution of 
Indian Valley Healthcare District.  

5.10 Any and all Plumas County, Plumas LAFCO and State of California fees or costs must be 
paid in full prior to filing the Certificate of Completion.  LAFCO will forward invoices and (or) a 
list of required fees prior to filing the Certificate of Completion for direct payment to the 
agency by project proponent. 

5.11 Approval of this reorganization is conditioned upon the applicant’s obligation to defend, 
indemnify, and hold harmless the Plumas Local Agency Formation Commission and its 
agents, officers and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the 
Commission or its agents, officers, and employees; including all costs, attorney’s fees, 
expenses and liabilities incurred in the defense of such claim, action, or proceeding to attack, 
set aside, or void the approval or determinations of this Commission concerning this change 
of organization.  The Plumas Local Agency Formation Commission shall promptly notify the 
applicant of any such claim, action, or proceeding and be entitled to representation by 
counsel of its choosing. 

5.12 The Executive Officer is directed to record a Certificate of Completion in Plumas County 
for this proposal after the expiration of the 30-day reconsideration period.  

5.13 Completion of proceedings shall be concluded within one year after adoption of this 
resolution. If the proceedings are not concluded within one year after passage of this 
resolution, all proceedings shall be terminated unless a request for an extension is submitted 
to LAFCo prior to the expiration date. 

The foregoing resolution was duly passed by the Plumas Local Agency Formation Commission at a 
regular meeting held on August 12, 2019, by the following roll call vote: 

Ayes:  

Noes:  

Abstentions:  

Absent:  
Signed and approved by me after its passage this 12th day of August, 2019. 

   
Tom Cooley, Chair, Plumas LAFCo 

Attest: 
  
Jennifer Stephenson, Executive Officer 
 



Jennifer Stephenson
Exhibit A



Jennifer Stephenson
Exhibit B

Jennifer Stephenson




Jennifer Stephenson
Exhibit C









Jennifer Stephenson
Exhibit D









   
Resolution 2019-0007 

Of the 
P l u m a s  L o c a l  A g e n c y  F o r m a t i o n  C o m m i s s i o n  

in 
Plumas County, California 

Making Determinations and Approving Dissolution of Indian Valley Healthcare District 
 
WHEREAS, a joint application was filed with the Executive Officer of the Plumas Local Agency Formation 
Commission by two Hospital Districts organized under the provisions of Government Code Section 32000, 
et seq, the Plumas Hospital District (“PHD”) and the Indian Valley Healthcare District (“IVHD”).  The 
application proposes a reorganization where the entirety of the territory within IVHD would be annexed into 
the PHD and the IVHD subsequently dissolved, ultimately transferring all services to PHD.  Said application 
complied with all the requirements of law and the Commission; and, 
WHEREAS, the proceedings for this reorganization are governed by the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local 
Government Reorganization Act of 2000, Section 56000 et seq. of the Government Code; and, 
WHEREAS, the applicants are located in Plumas County; and 
WHEREAS, the Commission has heard and approved the annexation of Indian Valley Healthcare District 
to Plumas Hospital District and the transfer of healthcare services to the Plumas Hospital District as the 
successor agency in Resolution 2019-0006 in accordance with Government Code Section 56825 et seq; 
and 
WHEREAS, all services, property, revenues, expenses, assets and fund balances of Indian Valley 
Healthcare District have been transferred to the Reorganized Plumas Hospital District, and Indian Valley 
Healthcare District will cease to provide services; and  
WHEREAS, the Plumas Hospital District, acting as the Lead Agency for this project in accordance with the 
provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act, has reviewed the reorganization proposal and has 
found that it qualifies for exemption under Class 20: Changes in Organization of Local Agencies, where 
the changes do not change the annexation area in which previously existing powers are exercised and 
that it will not result in adverse changes to the environment nor to the level or scope of services provided; 
and, 
WHEREAS, at the time and in the manner provided by law, the Executive Officer gave notice of the date, 
time, and place of a public hearing by the Commission upon said application, including mailed notice to 
affected and subject agencies and published notice in several newspapers of general circulation in order 
to that ensure agencies, affected citizens and landowners were aware of the proposal; and, 
WHEREAS, the Executive Officer has reviewed the application and has prepared a report including staff 
recommendations thereon within the time required by law and has furnished copies of said report to the 
Commission and to all other persons required by law to receive it; and, 
WHEREAS, the Commission has heard all interested parties desiring to be heard at the public hearing and 
considered the application and report by the Executive Officer and all other relevant evidence and 
information presented at said hearing;  
NOW, THEREFORE, the Plumas Local Agency Formation Commission determines the following: 
1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 
2. The Reorganized Plumas Hospital District has been identified as the successor agency of Indian Valley 

Healthcare District and the Commission has approved transfer of all related services to the 
Reorganized District. 

3. That Indian Valley Healthcare District will no longer provide services and is hereby dissolved. 
 
 

Jennifer Stephenson
Attachment 6



IVHD Dissolution 
LAFCo File 2018-0002 Resolution 2019-0007 
Plumas LAFCo August 12, 2019 

2 

4. The Commission concurs with the Plumas Hospital District finding and hereby affirms that this project 
qualifies for a Categorical Exemption to CEQA under Class 20 - Changes in the organization or 
reorganization of local governmental agencies where the changes do not change the annexation area 
in which previously existing powers are exercised. 

 
The foregoing resolution was duly passed by the Plumas Local Agency Formation Commission at a regular 
meeting held on August 12, 2019, by the following roll call vote: 

Ayes:   

Noes:  

Abstentions:  

Absent:  
Signed and approved by me after its passage this 12th day of August, 2019. 

   
Tom Cooley, Chair, Plumas LAFCo 

Attest: 
  
Jennifer Stephenson, Executive Officer 
 
 



Matthew Haesche 

1724 Pinebrook Way 

Greenville CA 95947 

(530)375-7572 

matthaesche@yahoo.com 

 

Dear Jennifer Stephenson 

 

Good morring. I have recently become aware that there is a vacancy for 
the LAFCo Public Member Position. I am interested in what LAFCo does 
and would like to attend a meeting to see more.  

I have recently viewed the power point presentation of what LAFCo 
means and what it does and feel that I would like to find out more by 
being invited to the meeting. 

 

Thank you.  

Matthew Haesche 

Jennifer Stephenson
Agenda Item #9



August 6, 2019 

 

LAFCo Commissioners, 

 

My name is Matthew Haesche.  My wife and I own a home in Greenville where we have lived with our 
family since December of 2011.  

I am employed by Waste Management, and have operated the Greenville transfer site and recycling 
center since August of 2016.  Not only do I talk with people from Greenville daily but also a large 
number of people from all over the county.  Recently I was talking about my day with my wife, Cheryl 
Kolb, over dinner and sharing some views people have expressed involving the county.  She told me 
about the LAFCo Public Member position.  I did some research, found out a bit more and decided I 
would like to be a part of it.  I am a firm believer in being involved in my community and making a 
difference where you live, and I know how difficult it is these days to find people who are willing to give 
their time and energy in a volunteer position.   

 I would be pleased to lend my time to help influence and shape the future of our county and I hope you 
will consider me for the Public Member position. 

 

Sincerely, 

Matthew Haesche 



 

 

ROBERT  A. MEACHER 
4618 Main St. / Box 22 

Taylorsville, CA 95983  (530)251-6269 

meacher.robert@gmail.com 

 

 

 

Experience 
                        City Manager, Portola California 2014 - 2018 

  

County Supervisor, 2nd District Plumas Co 1992 – 2012 

 Elected in 1992 and re-elected in 2008 to 5th four-year term of office.  Member of Plumas County’s 

Transportation Commission, Economic Development Commission, Director and spokesperson for the 

Flood Control and Water Conservation District, and a Commissioner of the Plumas County Local 

Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo).  Representative, and served as Chairman for the Regional 

Council of Rural Counties (RCRC), instrumental in starting the water program for the organization.  

Represented RCRC on the California Bio-diversity Council and the Pacific Forest Watershed Lands 

Stewardship Council.  Served three consecutive years as Chairman of the Nor-Cal Neva Resource 

Conservation and Development Council to elevate the viability of projects and programs available to the 

resource economies of northeastern California. 

 

Appointed consecutively by three State and Federal administrations to serve on the Calfed Bay-delta 

Program’s Public Advisory Committee as a local government member and co-chaired the Calfed 

Watershed Program Public Advisory Committee.  Robert served as co-chair of the statewide steering 

committee under the Brown Administration’s Resources Agency via the Department of Conservation. 

There he was charged with developing a watershed program for the state of California that will address, 

among other things, resource landscape adaptability to climate change.  Robert has brought local, state, 

and federal interests together around the principle of better resource management using the watershed 

approach.  He is an active member of three non-profit boards:  the Sacramento River Watershed 

Program, The Sierra Fund, and the California Watershed Network. 

 

Community/Political/Volunteer Experience 

 

CSAC Government Operations and Finance Subcommittee:  1993 to 2013 

Regional Council of Rural Counties (Board of Directors):  1993 to 2013 

Nor-Cal Neva Resource Conservation and Development Council (Representative):  1993 to 2005 

Sierra Nevada Research Project (Representative):  1994 to 1996 

RCRC Fire Task Force Subcommittee (Chair); Resources Agency’s State Fire Strategy Committee:  

1994 

Sierra Nevada Eco-System Project (Rural Contact): 1996 to 1997 

Nor-Cal Neva RC&D (Vice President-1994, Chair-1995) 

RCRC Executive Committee: 1994 to 2003 

RCRC Solid Waste Joint Powers Authority (Vice Chairman-1994, Chair-1995-96) 

RCRC Solid Waste Local Government Technical Advisory Committee: 1994 to 1995 

RCRC California Biodiversity Council (Representative): 1995 to 2013 

RCRC Water Policy Committee (Chair): 1996 to 1999 

Bay Delta Advisory Council (Source County Representative): 1996 to 2009 

Quincy Library Group (Steering Committee): 1994 to 2002 

RCRC Board of Directors (Chairman): 2000 to 2001 

BDPAC’s Watershed Working Group (Co-Chair): 1998 to 2009 

Water for California – Monterey Settlement (Board of Directors): 2002 



 

 

Area Agency of Aging (Representative): 2002 

PG&E Lands Stewardship Council (Board of Directors): 2004 -2013 

Plumas County Commission on Aging (Representative): 1993 to 2009 

Plumas County Community Development Commission (Governing Board Member): 1993 to 2013 

Local Agency Formation Commission (Representative): 1997 to 2013 

Plumas County Transportation Commission (Representative): 1997 to 2014 

 

Small Business Owner 
 
Twentyseven  years as owner / operator of the historic Genesee Store Bistro / Deli. A food service 

facility with restaurant, catering, and event planning services. 

 

Service and Education 
 
Cal State University Chico 1986 Pre law / Political Science Paralegal Certificate Program 

Thirteen years active United States Merchant Marine 1972 -1985 

 

Family 
 
Married 35 years to Carol Meacher (deceased). Three children Ryan (35) Robin (32), and Arlan (29) 

 

References  
 
Brian Dahle;  Member State Senate  

Elizabeth (Izzy) Martin; ED The Sierra Fund  

Steve Larson; California Strategies 

Martha Davis: Delta Stewardship Council  

Larry Myers; Native American Heritage Institute  

Art Bagget Jr.; St Water Board (Retired) 

Martha Guzman member CPUC BOD 

 

More available upon request 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Jennifer Stephenson
Agenda Item #10



























 
Hosted by CALAFCO 

October 30 – November 1  
Hyatt Regency, Sacramento 

 

 
 

Mark your calendar and 
plan to attend! 

Registration is now open!   
Visit www.calafco.org  

 

Value-Added and Diverse  
General & Breakout 

Session Topics 
 

 Stress-testing LAFCos and local 
agencies in changing times* 

 It takes a village: LAFCo, County 
and State collaboration to solve a 
local problem* 

 Water, water everywhere but not a 
drop to drink 

 Planning the legislative menu 
rather than being on the menu 

 What’s your story? Crafting and 
communicating a compelling 
LAFCo narrative 

 MSRs: You get out what you put in 
 Opportunities and challenges for 

LAFCo in addressing the housing 
call 

 Solving difficult service issues with 
creative and innovative solutions 

 Leading your LAFCo into the next 
decade with courage and 
independence* 

 Annual CALAFCO Legislative 
Update* 

 CALAFCO Annual Business Meeting 
(for all CALAFCO members)* 

 
Note: The Program is subject to change. 
*Indicates General Session 

Invaluable Networking 
Opportunities  

 
 Regional Roundtable 

discussions on current regional 
LAFCo issues 

 Extended roundtable discussion 
for LAFCo legal counsel  

 Networking breakfasts and 
breaks 

 Pre-dinner Reception with 
Sponsors Wednesday 

 Awards Banquet Wednesday 
 Welcome Reception Thursday 

 

Special 
Highlights 

 
Mobile Workshop 

Still under construction. 

 
 

We are working on a tour of 
the West Sacramento Port 

and Farmers Rice Coop 
plant followed by a visit to 
the new Sacramento Fire 
Fighter’s Museum with a 
special farm to fork lunch 

and several guest 
speakers. 

 
Details will be announced 
shortly – but register now 

to secure your seat! 
 

Wednesday from  
7:30 a.m. to 12:30 p.m. 

(times approx..) 
 

LAFCo 101 
An introduction to LAFCo 

and LAFCo law for 
Commissioners, Staff,  
and anyone interested  

in learning more  
about LAFCo 

 
Wednesday from  

10: 00 a.m. to Noon 

 
 

Thursday luncheon 
keynote to be announced 

 

Make your reservations now at the Hyatt 
Regency at the special CALAFCO rate of 
$139 (excludes tax and fees). Special 
rates available 2 days pre and post-
conference on availability, includes in-
room wifi and parking.  
Reservation cutoff date is 10/08/19.  
 
TO MAKE HOTEL RESERVATIONS, 
PLEASE VISIT: Hyatt Regency Online 
Reservation or call 877-803-7534 and 
reference CALAFCO Conference. 
 

Hyatt Regency downtown 

Visit www.calafco.org for Conference 
details or call us at 916-442-6536.  

https://www.hyatt.com/en-US/group-booking/SACRA/G-LAF1
https://www.hyatt.com/en-US/group-booking/SACRA/G-LAF1
http://www.calafco.org/
Jennifer Stephenson
Agenda Item #11



 

California Association of  

Local Agency Formation Commissions 

  

  

1020 12th Street, Suite 222, Sacramento, CA 95814 
Voice 916-442-6536    Fax 916-442-6535 

www.calafco.org 

 
 

June 25, 2019 
 

To: Local Agency Formation Commission 
 Members and Alternate Members 
 
From: Shiva Frentzen, Committee Chair 
 CALAFCO Board Election Committee 
 CALAFCO Board of Directors 
 
RE: Nominations for 2019/2020 CALAFCO Board of Directors 
 
Nominations are now open for the fall elections of the CALAFCO Board of Directors.  Serving on the 
CALAFCO Board is a unique opportunity to work with other commissioners throughout the state on 
legislative, fiscal and operational issues that affect us all.  The Board meets four to five times each 
year at alternate sites around the state.  Any LAFCo commissioner or alternate commissioner is 
eligible to run for a Board seat. 
 
CALAFCO’s Election Committee is accepting nominations for the following seats on the CALAFCO 
Board of Directors: 
 
Northern Region Central Region Coastal Region Southern Region 
County Member City Member City Member County Member 
District Member Public Member Public Member District Member 
  
The election will be conducted during Regional Caucuses at the CALAFCO Annual Conference prior to 
the Annual Membership Meeting on Thursday, October 31, 2019 at the Hyatt Regency in  
Sacramento, CA. 
 
Please inform your Commission that the CALAFCO Election Committee is accepting nominations 
for the above-cited seats until Monday, September 30, 2019. 
 
Incumbents are eligible to run for another term. Nominations received by September 30 will be 
included in the Election Committee’s Report and will be on the ballot. The Report will be distributed 
to LAFCo members no later than October 16, 2019 and ballots made available to Voting Delegates 
at the Annual Conference.  Nominations received after this date will be returned; however, 
nominations will be permitted from the floor during the Regional Caucuses or during at-large 
elections, if required, at the Annual Membership Meeting.  
 
For those member LAFCos who cannot send a representative to the Annual Meeting an electronic 
ballot will be made available if requested in advance. The ballot request must be made no later than 
Monday, September 30, 2019.  Completed absentee ballots must be returned by 8:00 a.m., 
Monday, October 28, 2019.   
 
Should your Commission nominate a candidate, the Chair of your Commission must complete the 
attached Nomination Form and the Candidate’s Resume Form, or provide the specified information 
in another format other than a resume.  Commissions may also include a letter of recommendation 
or resolution in support of their nominee.   
 

CALAFCO 

Jennifer Stephenson
Agenda Item #12



The nomination forms and materials must be received by the CALAFCO Executive Director no later 
than Monday, September 30, 2019 at 5:00 p.m. Here is a summary of the deadlines for this year’s 
nomination process: 
 
• June 26 – Nomination Announcement and packet sent to LAFCo membership and posted on 

the CALAFCO website. 
• September 30 – Completed Nomination packet due 
• September 30 –Request for an absentee/electronic ballot due 
• September 30 – Voting delegate name due to CALAFCO 
• October 16 – Distribution of the Election Committee Report (includes all completed/submitted 

nomination papers) 
• October 16 – Distribution of requested absentee/electronic ballots.  
• October 28 – Absentee ballots due to CALAFCO 
• October 31 - Elections 

 
Returning the nomination form prior to the deadline ensures your nominee is placed on the ballot. 
Names will be listed in the order nominations were received should there be multiple candidates. 
Electronic filing of nomination forms and materials is encouraged to facilitate the recruitment 
process.  Please send e-mails with forms and materials to info@calafco.org. Alternatively, nomination 
forms and materials can be mailed or faxed to the address or fax number below. Please forward 
nominations to: 
 
 CALAFCO Election Committee c/o Executive Director 
 California Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions 
 1020 12th Street, Suite 222 
 Sacramento, California 95814 
 FAX: 916-442-6535 
 EMAIL: info@calafco.org  
 
Questions about the election process can be sent to the Chair of the Committee, Shiva Frentzen, at 
sfrentzen@calafco.org or by calling her at 530-621-5390. You may also contact CALAFCO Executive 
Director Pamela Miller at pmiller@calafco.org or by calling 916-442-6536. 
 
Members of the 2019/2020 CALAFCO Election Committee are: 
 

Shiva Frentzen, Chair El Dorado LAFCo (Central Region)  
sfrentzen@calafco.org 530-621-5390 
 

 Josh Susman Nevada LAFCo (Northern Region) 
  jsusman@calafco.org  530-265-7180 

 
 Cheryl Brothers Orange LAFCo (Southern Region) 
 cbrothers@calafco.org  714-640-5100 
 
 Jane Parker Monterey LAFCo (Coastal Region) 
 jparker@calafco.org  831-883-7570 
 
Attached please find a copy of the CALAFCO Board of Directors Nomination and Election Procedures 
as well as the current listing of Board Members and corresponding terms of office. 
 
Please consider joining us! 
 
Enclosures 

Local Agency Formation Commissions       Page 2 
CALAFCO Board of Directors Nominations  June 26, 2019 

mailto:info@calafco.org
mailto:info@calafco.org


Key Timeframes for 
Nominations Process 

Days*  
90 Nomination announcement 
30 Nomination deadline 
14 Committee report released 

*Days prior to annual membership meeting
  

 
Board of Directors Nomination and Election 

Procedures and Forms 
 

The procedures for nominations and election of the CALAFCO Board of Directors [Board] are designed 
to assure full, fair and open consideration of all candidates, provide confidential balloting for 
contested positions and avoid excessive demands on the time of those participating in the CALAFCO 
Annual Conference. 
 

The Board nomination and election procedures shall be: 
 

1. APPOINTMENT OF AN ELECTION COMMITTEE: 
 

a. Following the Annual Membership Meeting the Board shall appoint an Election Committee 
of four members of the Board.  The Election Committee shall consist of one member from 
each region whose term is not ending. 8 

 
b. The Board shall appoint one of the members of the Election Committee to serve as 

Chairman.  The CALAFCO Executive Officer shall appoint a CALAFCO staff member to serve 
as staff for the Election Committee in cooperation with the CALAFCO Executive Director. 8 

 
c. Each region shall designate a regional representative to serve as staff liaison to the 

Election Committee. 8 
 
d. Goals of the Committee are to provide oversight of the elections process and to encourage 

and solicit candidates by region who represent member LAFCos across the spectrum of 
geography, size, and urban suburban and rural population if there is an open seat for 
which no nominations papers have been received close to the deadline. 8 

 
2. ANNOUNCEMENT TO ALL MEMBER LAFCOs: 
 

a. No later than three months prior to the Annual Membership Meeting, the Election 
Committee Chair shall send an announcement to each LAFCo for distribution to each 
commissioner and alternate.  The announcement shall include the following: 8 

 
i. A statement clearly indicating which offices are subject to the election. 
 
ii. A regional map including LAFCos listed by region. 
 
iii. The dates by which all nominations must be received by the Election Committee. The 

deadline shall be no later than 30 days prior to the opening of the Annual Conference.  
Nominations received after the closing date shall be returned to the proposing LAFCo 
marked “Received too late for Elections Committee action.” 8 

 
iv. The names of the Election Committee members with the 

Committee Chairman’s LAFCo address and phone number, 
and the names and contact information for each of the 
regional representatives. 8 

 
v. The address to send the nominations forms. 
 
vi. A form for a Commission to use to nominate a candidate 

and a candidate resume form of no more than one page each to be completed for each 
nominee.   

 
b. No later than four months before the annual membership meeting, the Election Committee 

Chairman shall send an announcement to the Executive Director for distribution to each 
member LAFCo and for publication in the newsletter and on the web site. The 
announcement shall include the following: 8 

 



 
i. A statement clearly indicating which offices are subject to the election. 
 
ii. The specific date by which all nominations must be received by the Election 

Committee. Nominations received after the closing dates shall be returned to the 
proposing LAFCo marked “Received too late for Election Committee action.” 8 

 
iii. The names of the Election Committee members with the Committee Chair’s LAFCo 

address and phone number, and the names and contact information for each of the 
regional representatives. 8 

iv. Requirement that nominated individual must be a commissioner or alternate 
commissioner from a member in good standing within the region.  

 
c.    A copy of these procedures shall be posted on the web site. 

 
3. THE ELECTION COMMITTEE: 
 

a. The Election Committee and the regional representatives have the responsibility to monitor 
nominations and help assure that there are adequate nominations from each region for 
each seat up for election. No later than two weeks prior to the Annual Conference, the 
Election Committee Chair shall distribute to the members the Committee Report organized 
by regions, including copies of all nominations and resumes, which are received prior to the 
end of the nomination period. 8 

 
b. At the close of the nominations the Election Committee shall prepare regional ballots. Each 

region will receive a ballot specific to that region. Each region shall conduct a caucus at the 
Annual Conference for the purpose of electing their designated seats. Caucus elections 
must be held prior to the annual membership meeting at the conference. The Executive 
Director or assigned staff along with a member of the Election Committee shall tally ballots 
at each caucus and provide the Election Committee the names of the elected Board 
members and any open seats. In the event of a tie, the staff and Election Committee 
member shall immediately conduct a run-off ballot of the tied candidates. 8 

c. Make available sufficient copies of the Committee Report for each Voting Delegate by the 
beginning of the Annual Conference. 
 

d. Make available blank copies of the nomination forms and resume forms to accommodate 
nominations from the floor at either the caucuses or the annual meeting (if an at-large 
election is required). 

 
e. Advise the Executive Director to provide “CANDIDATE” ribbons to all candidates attending 

the Annual Conference. 8 
 
f. Post the candidate statements/resumes organized by region on a bulletin board near the 

registration desk. 
 
g. Regional elections shall be conducted as described in Section 4 below. The representative 

from the Election Committee shall serve as the Presiding Officer for the purpose of the 
caucus election. 8 

 
h. Following the regional elections, in the event that there are open seats for any offices 

subject to the election, the Election Committee Chair shall notify the Chair of the Board of 
Directors that an at-large election will be required at the annual membership meeting and 
to provide a list of the number and category of seats requiring an at-large election. 8 
 
 
 
 
 

 



4. ELECTRONIC BALLOT FOR LAFCO IN GOOD STANDING NOT ATTENDING ANNUAL MEETING6 
Limited to the elections of the Board of Directors 

  
a. Any LAFCo in good standing shall have the option to request an electronic ballot if there will 

be no representative attending the annual meeting. 

b. LAFCos requesting an electronic ballot shall do so in writing no later than 30 days prior to 
the annual meeting. 

c. The Executive Director shall distribute the electronic ballot no later than two weeks prior to 
the annual meeting. 

d. LAFCo must return the ballot electronically to the executive director no later than three 
days prior to the annual meeting. 

e. LAFCos voting under this provision may discard their electronic ballot if a representative is 
able to attend the annual meeting. 

f. LAFCos voting under this provision may only vote for the candidates nominated by the 
Election Committee and may not vote in any run-off elections. 8 

 
 

5. AT THE TIME FOR ELECTIONS DURING THE REGIONAL CAUCUSES OR ANNUAL 
MEMBERSHIP MEETING: 

 
a. The Election Committee Chairman, another member of the Election Committee or the 

Chair’s designee (hereafter called the Presiding Officer) shall: 8 
 

i. Review the election procedure with the membership. 
 

ii. Present the Election Committee Report (previously distributed). 
 

iii. Call for nominations from the floor by category for those seats subject to this 
election:  

 
1. For city member. 
 
2. For county member. 
 
3. For public member. 
 
4. For special district member. 

 
b. To make a nomination from the floor, a LAFCo, which is in good standing, shall identify 

itself and then name the category of vacancy and individual being nominated. The 
nominator may make a presentation not to exceed two minutes in support of the 
nomination. 

 
c. When there are no further nominations for a category, the Presiding Officer shall close the 

nominations for that category. 
d. The Presiding Officer shall conduct a “Candidates Forum”.  Each candidate shall be given 

time to make a brief statement for their candidacy. 
 
e. The Presiding Officer shall then conduct the election: 

 
i. For categories where there are the same number of candidates as vacancies, the 

Presiding Officer shall: 
 

1. Name the nominees and offices for which they are nominated. 
2. Call for a voice vote on all nominees and thereafter declare those unopposed 

candidates duly elected. 



ii. For categories where there are more candidates than vacancies, the Presiding Officer 
shall: 

 
1. Poll the LAFCos in good standing by written ballot. 
 
2. Each LAFCo in good standing may cast its vote for as many nominees as there 

are vacancies to be filled.  The vote shall be recorded on a tally sheet. 
 
3. Any ballots submitted electronically for candidates included in the Election 

Committee Report shall be added to the tally.8 
 
4. With assistance from CALAFCO staff, tally the votes cast and announce the 

results. 
 

iii. Election to the Board shall occur as follows: 
 

1. The nominee receiving the majority6 of votes cast is elected. 
 
2. In the case of no majority, the two nominees receiving the two highest number of 

votes cast shall face each other in a run-off election. Electronic ballots are not 
included in the tally for any run-off election(s).6 

 
3. In case of tie votes6: 

 
a. A second run-off election shall be held with the same two nominees. 
 
b. If there remains a tie after the second run-off, the winner shall be determined 

by a draw of lots. 
 

4. In the case of two vacancies, any candidate receiving a majority of votes cast is 
elected. 6  

 
a. In the case of no majority for either vacancy, the three nominees receiving 

the three highest number of votes cast shall face each other in a run-off 
election. 

 
b. In the case of no majority for one vacancy, the two nominees receiving the 

second and third highest number of votes cast shall face each other in a run-
off election. 

 
c. In the event of a tie, a second run-off election shall be held with the tied 

nominees. If there remains a tie after the second run-off election the winner 
shall be determined by a draw of lots. 

 
6. ADDITIONAL PROCEDURES 
 

a. For categories where there are more candidates than vacancies, names will be listed in the 
order nominated. 

 
b. The Election Committee Chair shall announce and introduce all Board Members elected at 

the Regional Caucuses at the annual business meeting. 8  
 
c. In the event that Board seats remain unfilled after a Regional Caucus, an election will be 

held immediately at the annual business meeting to fill the position at-large. Nominations 
will be taken from the floor and the election process will follow the procedures described in 
Section 4 above. Any commissioner or alternate from a member LAFCo may be nominated 
for at-large seats.  

d. Seats elected at-large become subject to regional election at the expiration of the term. 
Only representatives from the region may be nominated for the seat.  

 
e. As required by the Bylaws, the members of the Board shall meet as soon as possible after 



election of new board members for the purpose of electing officers, determining meeting 
places and times for the coming year, and conducting any other necessary business. 

 
7. LOSS OF ELECTION IN HOME LAFCo 

 
Board Members and candidates who lose elections in their home office shall notify the 
Executive Director within 15 days of the certification of the election. 
 

8. FILLING BOARD VACANCIES 

Vacancies on the Board of Directors may be filled by appointment by the Board for the balance 
of the unexpired term. Appointees must be from the same category as the vacancy, and should 
be from the same region.   

These policies and procedures were adopted by the CALAFCO Board of Directors on 12 January 2007 and amended on 9 November 20071 , 8 February 
20082, 13 February 20093, 12 February 20104, 18 February 20115, 29 April 20116,,  11 July 20147, and 27 October 20178. .  They supersede all previous 
versions of the policies. 
.

CALAFCO Regions 



The counties in each of the four regions consist of the following:  

 

Northern Region Coastal Region 
Butte Alameda 
Colusa Contra Costa 
Del Norte Marin 
Glenn Monterey 
Humboldt Napa 
Lake San Benito 
Lassen San Francisco 
Mendocino San Luis Obispo 
Modoc San Mateo 
Nevada Santa Barbara 
Plumas Santa Clara 
Shasta Santa Cruz 
Sierra Solano 
Siskiyou Sonoma 
Sutter Ventura 
Tehama  
Trinity CONTACT: Martha Poyatos   
Yuba San Mateo LAFCo 
 mpoyatos@smcgov.org   
CONTACT:  Steve Lucas 
Butte LAFCo 
slucas@buttecounty.net Central Region 
 Alpine  
 Amador  
 Calaveras  
Southern Region El Dorado 
Orange Fresno 
Los Angeles Inyo 
Imperial Kern 
Riverside Kings 
San Bernardino Madera 
San Diego Mariposa 
 Merced 
CONTACT:  Keene Simonds Mono 
San Diego LAFCo Placer 
keene.simonds@sdcounty.ca.gov   Sacramento 
 San Joaquin 
 Stanislaus 
 Tulare 
 Tuolumne  
 Yolo  
 
 CONTACT:  Christine Crawford, Yolo LAFCo 

christine.crawford@yolocounty.org 

 
 

 



Board of Directors 

2019/2020 Nominations Form 
 
 

Nomination to the CALAFCO Board of Directors 
 

 
In accordance with the Nominations and Election Procedures of CALAFCO,  

  LAFCo of the   Region  

Nominates   

for the (check one)  � City  � County � Special District  � Public 

Position on the CALAFCO Board of Directors to be filled by election at the next Annual 

Membership Meeting of the Association. 

 
 

 
 

   
LAFCo Chair 

 
 

   
Date 

NOTICE OF DEADLINE 
 

Nominations must be received by September 30, 2019 
at 5:00 p.m. to be considered by the Election Committee. 
Send completed nominations to: 
CALAFCO Election Committee 
CALAFCO 
1020 12th Street, Suite 222 
Sacramento, CA 95814 



 
 

Board of Directors 
2019/2020 Candidate Resume Form 

 

Nominated By:      LAFCo Date:   

Region (please check one):    � Northern  � Coastal  � Central  � Southern 
 
Category (please check one):    � City  � County  � Special District  � Public 

Candidate Name   

 Address   

 Phone Office   Mobile   

 e-mail    
 
Personal and Professional Background: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LAFCo Experience: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CALAFCO or State-level Experience: 
 
 
 
 
 

Date Received  

  



Availability: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Other Related Activities and Comments: 
 
 
 

 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

NOTICE OF DEADLINE 
 

Nominations must be received by September 30, 2019 
at 5:00 p.m. to be considered by the Election Committee. 
Send completed nominations to: 
CALAFCO Election Committee 
CALAFCO 
1020 12th Street, Suite 222 
Sacramento, CA 95814 



 

California Association of  

Local Agency Formation Commissions 

  

  

1020 12th Street, Suite 222, Sacramento, CA 95814 
Voice 916-442-6536    Fax 916-442-6535 

www.calafco.org 

 
 

Date: July 10, 2019 
 
To: LAFCo Commissioners and Staff 
 CALAFCO Members 
 Other Interested Organizations 
 
From:   CALAFCO Achievement Awards Committee 
 
Subject:   2019 CALAFCO Achievement Award Nominations 
 
Each year, CALAFCO recognizes outstanding achievements by dedicated and committed individuals and/or 
organizations from throughout the state at the Annual Conference Achievement Awards Ceremony. 
 
Recognizing individual and organizational achievements is an important responsibility. It provides visible recognition and 
support to those who go above and beyond in their work to advance the principles and goals of the Cortese-Knox-
Hertzberg Act. We invite you to use this opportunity to nominate the individuals and organizations you feel deserve this 
important recognition. Please carefully review the nomination instructions and the criteria for each category. 
 
To make a nomination, please use the following procedure: 

 
1. Nominations may be made by an individual, a LAFCo, a CALAFCO Associate Member, or any other organization. 

There is no limit to the number of nominations you can submit. 

2. Please use a separate form (attached) for each nomination. Nominations must be submitted with a completed 
nomination form. The form is your opportunity to highlight the most important points of your nomination. 

3. Nominations must be limited to no more than 1500 words or 3 pages in length maximum. You are encouraged 
to write them in a clear, concise and understandable manner.  If the Awards Committee members require 
additional information, you will be contacted with that request. Any nomination received that exceeds this 
amount will be returned. 

4. All supporting information (e.g. reports, news articles, etc.) must be submitted with the nomination.  Limit 
supporting documentation to no more than 5 pages. If the Awards Committee members require additional 
information, you will be contacted with that request. Any nomination received that exceeds this amount will be 
returned. 

5. All nomination materials must be submitted at one time and must be received by the deadline. Electronic 
submittals are encouraged. 

6. Nominations and supporting materials must be received no later than 5:00 p.m., Friday, September 20, 2019. 
Send nominations via e-mail, or U.S. mail to: 

 
 Stephen Lucas, CALAFCO Executive Officer 
 c/o Butte LAFCo 
 1453 Downer Street, Suite C 
 Oroville, CA 95965 
 slucas@calafco.org  
 

Members of the 2019 CALAFCO Board of Directors Awards Committee are: 
Mike Kelley, Committee Chair (Imperial LAFCo, Southern Region)   mkelley@calafco.org 
Cheryl Brothers (Orange LAFCo, Southern Region)    cbrothers@calaco.org    
Debra Lake (Humboldt LAFCo, Northern Region)     dlake@calafco.org  
Margie Mohler (Napa LAFCo, Coastal Region)     mmohler@calafco.org  
Daniel Parra (Fresno LAFCo, Central Region)     dparra@calafco.org  

 
Please contact Steve Lucas, CALAFCO Executive Officer, at slucas@calafco.org or (530) 538-7784 with any questions. A list of 
the previous Achievement Award recipients is attached to this announcement. 

CALAFCO 
2019 

AWARDS 

Jennifer Stephenson
Agenda Item #13



 
 

2019 Achievement Award Nominations 
 

 
Nomination Form 

 
NOMINEE - Person or Agency Being Nominated: 

 
Name: 

Organization: 

Address: 

Phone: 

E-mail: 

 
NOMINATION CATEGORY (check one – see category criteria on attached sheet) 

Outstanding CALAFCO Member 

Most Effective Commission 

Outstanding Commissioner 

Outstanding LAFCo Professional 

Outstanding LAFCo Clerk 

Outstanding CALAFCO Associate Member 

Project of the Year 

Distinguished Service Award 

Government Leadership Award 
 

Legislator of the Year (must be approved by the full CALAFCO Board) 
 

Mike Gotch Courage and Innovation in Local Government Award 
 

Lifetime Achievement Award 
 

NOMINATION SUBMITTED BY:  
 

Name: 

Organization: 

Address: 

Phone:  

E-mail: 



 
 

2019 Achievement Award Nominations 
 

 
 
 
NOMINATION SUMMARY 
In no more than 250 words, summarize why this recipient is the most deserving of this 
award.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACHIEVEMENTS 
Please indicate the reasons why this person or agency deserves to be recognized (Remember 
to keep this portion to 1500 words or 3 pages maximum and use additional sheets as 
needed): 



 
 

2019 Achievement Award Nominations 
 

 
CALAFCO ACHIEVEMENT AWARD CATEGORIES 
 

CALAFCO recognizes excellence within the LAFCo community and the full membership by presenting the Achievement 
Awards at the CALAFCO Annual Conference. Nominations are being accepted until 5:00 p.m., Friday, September 
20, 2019 in the following categories: 
 
Outstanding CALAFCO Member                       Recognizes a CALAFCO Board Member or staff person who has 

provided exemplary service during the past year. 
 
Distinguished Service Award Given to a member of the LAFCo community to recognize long-term 

service by an individual. 
 
Most Effective Commission                            Presented to an individual Commission to recognize innovation, 

streamlining, and/or initiative in implementing LAFCo programs; may 
also be presented to multiple Commissions for joint efforts. 

 
Outstanding Commissioner Presented to an individual Commissioner for extraordinary service to 

his or her Commission. 
 
Outstanding LAFCo Professional                         Recognizes an Executive Officer, Staff Analyst, or Legal Counsel for 

exemplary service during the past year. 
 
Outstanding LAFCo Clerk Recognizes a LAFCo Clerk for exemplary service during the past 

year. 
 
Outstanding CALAFCO Associate Member Presented to an active CALAFCO Associate Member (person or 

agency) that has advanced or promoted the cause of LAFCos by 
consistently producing distinguished work that upholds the mission 
and goals of LAFCos, and has helped elevate the roles and mission 
of LAFCos through its work. Recipient consistently demonstrates a 
collaborative approach to LAFCo stakeholder engagement. 

 
Project of the Year Recognition for a project-specific program that involved complex 

staff analysis, community involvement, or an outstanding solution. 
 
Government Leadership Award                     Presented to a decision-making body at the city, county, special 

district, regional or state level which has furthered good government 
efforts in California. 

 
Legislator of the Year Presented to a member of the California State Senate or Assembly 

in recognition of leadership and valued contributions in support of 
LAFCo goals. Selected by CALAFCO Board. 

 
Mike Gotch Courage and Innovation               Presented to an individual who has taken extraordinary steps to 
in Local Government Award improve and innovate local government. This award is named for 

Mike Gotch: former Assembly Member, LAFCo Executive Officer and 
CALAFCO Executive Director responsible for much of the foundations 
of LAFCo law and CALAFCO. He is remembered as a source of great 
inspiration for staff and legislators from throughout the state.

Lifetime Achievement Award  Recognizes any individual who has made extraordinary contributions 
to the LAFCO community in terms of longevity of service, exemplary 
advocacy of LAFCO-related legislation, proven leadership in 
approaching a particular issue or issues, and/or demonstrated 
support in innovative and creative ways of the goals of LAFCOs 
throughout California.  At a minimum, the individual should be 
involved in the LAFCO community for at least ten years.



 
 

2019 Achievement Award Nominations 
 

 

CALAFCO ACHIEVEMENT AWARD RECIPIENTS 
 
2018 
 
Distinguished Service Award John Withers, Orange LAFCo 
Most Effective Commission Santa Clara LAFCo 
Outstanding Commissioner Margie Mohler, Napa LAFCo 

Outstanding LAFCo Professional George Williamson, Del Norte LAFCo  

Outstanding LAFCo Clerk Elizabeth Valdez, Riverside LAFCo 

Outstanding CALAFCO Associate Member Best Best & Krieger  
Project of the Year Lake LAFCo, water services consolidation  
Government Leadership Award City of Porterville, County of Tulare, Dept. of Water 

Resources, State Water Resources Control Board, 
Governor’s Office of Emergency Services, Self Help 
Enterprises, Community Water Center for East Porterville 
water supply project 

Mike Gotch Courage & Innovation in Mike Ott, San Diego LAFCo 
Local Government Leadership Award 
 
Legislator of the Year Assembly Member Anna Caballero  
Lifetime Achievement Award Pat McCormick, Santa Cruz LAFCo, George Spiliotis, Riverside 

LAFCo 
 
2017 
 
Most Effective Commission Los Angeles LAFCo 
Outstanding CALAFCO Member Sblend Sblendorio, Alameda LAFCo 
Outstanding Commissioner John Marchand, Alameda LAFCo 

Outstanding LAFCo Professional Paul Novak, Los Angeles LAFCo  

Outstanding LAFCo Clerk Richelle Beltran, Ventura LAFCo 

Outstanding CALAFCO Associate Member Policy Consulting Associates  
Project of the Year County Services MSR, Butte LAFCo 
 Santa Rosa Annexation, Sonoma LAFCo 
Government Leadership Award San Luis Obispo County Public Works Dept.  
Lifetime Achievement Award Kathy Rollings McDonald (San Bernardino) 
 
2016 
 
Distinguished Service Award Peter Brundage, Sacramento LAFCo 
Most Effective Commission San Luis Obispo LAFCo 
Outstanding CALAFCO Member John Leopold, Santa Cruz LAFCo 
Outstanding Commissioner Don Tatzin, Contra Costa LAFCo 

Outstanding LAFCo Professional Steve Lucas, Butte LAFCo  

Outstanding LAFCo Clerk Cheryl Carter-Benjamin, Orange LAFCo 
Project of the Year Countywide Water Study, (Marin LAFCo) 
Government Leadership Award Southern Region of CALAFCO 
Lifetime Achievement Award Bob Braitman (retired Executive Officer) 



 
 

2019 Achievement Award Nominations 
 

 
2015 
 
Mike Gotch Courage & Innovation in Yuba County Water Agency 
Local Government Leadership Award 
Distinguished Service Award Mary Jane Griego, Yuba LAFCo 
Most Effective Commission Butte LAFCo 
Outstanding CALAFCO Member Marjorie Blom, formerly of Stanislaus LAFCo 
Outstanding Commissioner Matthew Beekman, formerly of Stanislaus LAFCo 

Outstanding LAFCo Professional Sam Martinez, San Bernardino LAFCo  

Outstanding LAFCo Clerk Terri Tuck, Yolo LAFCo 
Project of the Year Formation of the Ventura County Waterworks District No. 

38 (Ventura LAFCo) and 2015 San Diego County Health 
Care Services five-year sphere of influence and service 
review report (San Diego LAFCo) 

Government Leadership Award The Cities of Dublin, Pleasanton, Livermore and San 
Ramon, the Dublin San Ramon Services District and the 
Zone 7 Water Agency 

CALAFCO Associate Member of the Year Michael Colantuono of Colantuono, Highsmith & Whatley 
Legislators of the Year Award Assembly member Chad Mayes 

Lifetime Achievement Award Jim Chapman (Lassen LAFCo) and Chris Tooker (formerly of 
Sacramento LAFCo)  

 
2014 

 
Mike Gotch Courage & Innovation in David Church, San Luis Obispo LAFCo 
Local Government Leadership Award 
Distinguished Service Award Kate McKenna, Monterey LAFCo 
Most Effective Commission Santa Clara LAFCo 
Outstanding CALAFCO Member Stephen Lucas, Butte LAFCo  
Outstanding Commissioner Paul Norsell, Nevada LAFCo 
Outstanding LAFCo Professional Kate McKenna, Monterey LAFCo 
Outstanding LAFCo Clerk Paige Hensley, Yuba LAFCo 
Project of the Year LAFCo Procedures Guide: 50th Year Special Edition,          

San Diego LAFCo 
 
Government Leadership Award  Orange County Water District, City of Anaheim, Irvine 

Ranch Water District, and Yorba Linda Water District 
Legislators of the Year Award Assembly member Katcho Achadjian 
Lifetime Achievement Award Susan Wilson, Orange LAFCo 
 
2013 

 
Mike Gotch Courage & Innovation in Simón Salinas, Commissioner, Monterey LAFCo 
Local Government Leadership Award 
Distinguished Service Award Roseanne Chamberlain, Amador LAFCo 
Most Effective Commission Stanislaus LAFCo 
Outstanding CALAFCO Member Harry Ehrlich, San Diego LAFCo  
Outstanding Commissioner Jerry Gladbach, Los Angeles LAFCo 
Outstanding LAFCo Professional Lou Ann Texeira, Contra Costa 
LAFCo Outstanding LAFCo Clerk Kate Sibley, Contra Costa LAFCo 
Project of the Year Plan for Agricultural Preservation, Stanislaus LAFCo 
 



 
 

2019 Achievement Award Nominations 
 

 
 
Government Leadership Award Orange County LAFCo Community Islands Taskforce,       

Orange LAFCo 
Legislators of the Year Award Senators Bill Emmerson and Richard Roth 
Lifetime Achievement Award H. Peter Faye, Yolo LAFCo; Henry Pellissier, Los Angeles 

LAFCo; Carl Leverenz, Butte LAFCo; Susan Vicklund-Wilson, 
Santa Clara LAFCo. 

 
2012 

 
Mike Gotch Courage & Innovation in Bill Chiat, CALAFCO Executive Director 
Local Government Leadership Award 
Distinguished Service Award Marty McClelland, Commissioner, Humboldt LAFCo 
Most Effective Commission Sonoma LAFCo 
Outstanding CALAFCO Member Stephen A. Souza, Commissioner, Yolo LAFCo and 

CALAFCO Board of Directors 
Outstanding Commissioner Sherwood Darington, Monterey 
LAFCo Outstanding LAFCo Professional Carole Cooper, Sonoma LAFCo 
Outstanding LAFCo Clerk Gwenna MacDonald, Lassen LAFCo 
Project of the Year Countywide Service Review & SOI Update, Santa Clara 

 LAFCo 
Government Leadership Award North Orange County Coalition of Cities, Orange LAFCo 
Lifetime Achievement Award P. Scott Browne, Legal Counsel LAFCos 

 
 
 

2011 
 

Mike Gotch Courage & Innovation in Martin Tuttle, Deputy Director for Planning, Caltrans 
Local Government Leadership Award Mike McKeever, Executive Director, SACOG 
Distinguished Service Award Carl Leverenz, Commissioner and Chair, Butte 
LAFCo Most Effective Commission San Bernardino LAFCo 

Outstanding CALAFCO Member Keene Simonds, Executive Officer, Napa LAFCo 
Outstanding Commissioner Louis R. Calcagno, Monterey LAFCo 
Outstanding LAFCo Professional June Savala, Deputy Executive Officer, Los Angeles LAFCo 
Outstanding LAFCo Clerk Debbie Shubert, Ventura LAFCo 
Project of the Year Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Definitions Revision 

Bob Braitman, Scott Browne, Clark Alsop, Carole Cooper, 
and George Spiliotis 

Government Leadership Award Contra Costa Sanitary District 
Elsinore Water District and Elsinore Valley Municipal Water 
District 

 
2010 

 
Mike Gotch Courage & Innovation in Helen Thompson, Commissioner, Yolo LAFCo 
Local Government Leadership Award 
Distinguished Service Award Kathleen Rollings-McDonald, Executive Officer, San 

Bernardino LAFCo 
Bob Braitman, Executive Officer, Santa Barbara LAFCo 

Most Effective Commission Tulare LAFCo 
Outstanding CALAFCO Member Roger Anderson, Ph.D., CALAFCO Chair, Santa Cruz LAFCo 
Outstanding Commissioner George Lange, Ventura LAFCo 
Outstanding LAFCo Professional Harry Ehrlich, Government Consultant, San Diego LAFCo 



 
 

2019 Achievement Award Nominations 
 

 
 
Outstanding LAFCo Clerk Candie Fleming, Fresno LAFCo 

 

Project of the Year Butte LAFCo 
Sewer Commission - Oroville Region Municipal Service 
Review 

Government Leadership Award Nipomo Community Services District and the County of San 
Luis Obispo 

Special Achievement Chris Tooker, Sacramento LAFCo and CALAFCO Board of 
Directors 

 
 

2009 
 

Mike Gotch Courage & Innovation in Paul Hood, Executive Officer, San Luis Obispo LAFCo 
Local Government Leadership Award 
Distinguished Service Award William Zumwalt, Executive Officer, Kings LAFCo 
Most Effective Commission Napa LAFCo 
Outstanding CALAFCO Member Susan Vicklund Wilson, CALAFCO Vice Chair 

Jerry Gladbach, CALAFCO Treasurer 
Outstanding Commissioner Larry M. Fortune, Fresno LAFCo 
Outstanding LAFCo Professional Pat McCormick, Santa Cruz LAFCo Executive Officer 
Outstanding LAFCo Clerk Emmanuel Abello, Santa Clara LAFCo 
Project of the Year Orange LAFCo Boundary Report 
Government Leadership Award Cities of Amador City, Jackson, Ione, Plymouth & Sutter 

Creek; Amador County; Amador Water Agency; Pine 
Grove CSD – Countywide MSR Project 

Legislator of the Year Award Assembly Member Jim Silva 
 

2008 
 

Distinguished Service Award Peter M. Detwiler, Senate Local Government Committee 
  Chief Consultant 

Most Effective Commission Yuba LAFCo 
Outstanding Commissioner Dennis Hansberger, San Bernardino LAFCo 
Outstanding LAFCo Professional Michael Ott, San Diego LAFCo Executive Officer 

Martha Poyatos, San Mateo Executive Officer 
Outstanding LAFCo Clerk Wilda Turner, Los Angeles LAFCo 
Project of the Year Kings LAFCo 

City and Community District MSR and SOI Update 
Government Leadership Award San Bernardino Board of Supervisors 
Legislator of the Year Award Assembly Member Anna M. Caballero 

 
2007 

 

Outstanding CALAFCO Member Kathy Long, Board Chair, Ventura LAFCo 
Distinguished Service Award William D. Smith, San Diego Legal 
Counsel Most Effective Commission Santa Clara LAFCo 

Outstanding Commissioner Gayle Uilkema, Contra Costa LAFCo 
 
Outstanding LAFCo Professional Joyce Crosthwaite, Orange LAFCo Executive Officer 
Outstanding LAFCo Clerk Debby Chamberlin, San Bernardino LAFCo 
Project of the Year San Bernardino LAFCo and City of Fontana 

Islands Annexation Program 



 
 

2019 Achievement Award Nominations 
 

 
 
Government Leadership Award City of Fontana - Islands Annexation Program 
Lifetime Achievement John T. “Jack” Knox 

 
2006 

 

Outstanding CALAFCO Member                                  Everett Millais, CALAFCO Executive Officer and Executive 
Officer of Ventura LAFCo 

Distinguished Service Award Clark Alsop, CALAFCO Legal Counsel 
Most Effective Commission Award Alameda LAFCo 
Outstanding Commissioner Award                             Ted Grandsen, Ventura LAFCo 

Chris Tooker, Sacramento LAFCo 
Outstanding LAFCo Professional Award                     Larry Calemine, Los Angeles LAFCo Executive Officer 
Outstanding LAFCo Clerk Award                                 Janice Bryson, San Diego LAFCo 

Marilyn Flemmer, Sacramento LAFCo 
Project of the Year Award                                           Sacramento Municipal Utility District Sphere of Influence 

Amendment and Annexation; Sacramento LAFCo 
Outstanding Government Leadership Award            Cities of Porterville, Tulare, and Visalia and Tulare LAFCo 

Island Annexation Program 
Legislator of the Year Award                                       Senator Christine Kehoe 

 
2005 

 

Outstanding CALAFCO Member                                  Peter Herzog, CALAFCO Board, Orange LAFCo 
Distinguished Service Award                                      Elizabeth Castro Kemper, Yolo LAFCo 
Most Effective Commission Award                             Ventura LAFCo 
Outstanding Commissioner Award                             Art Aseltine, Yuba LAFCo 

Henri Pellissier, Los Angeles LAFCo 
Outstanding LAFCo Professional Award                   Bruce Baracco, San Joaquin LAFCo 
Outstanding LAFCo Clerk Award                                 Danielle Ball, Orange LAFCo 

Project of the Year Award                                           San Diego LAFCo 
MSR of Fire Protection and Emergency Medical Services 

Outstanding Government Leadership Award            Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG) 
 

2004 
 

Outstanding CALAFCO Member                                  Scott Harvey, CALAFCO Executive Director 
Distinguished Service Award                                      Julie Howard, Shasta LAFCo 
Most Effective Commission Award                             San Diego LAFCo 

Outstanding Commissioner Award                        Edith Johnsen, Monterey LAFCo  

Outstanding LAFCo Professional Award                     David Kindig, Santa Cruz LAFCo 
Project of the Year Award                                           San Luis Obispo LAFCo 

Nipomo CSD SOI Update, MSR, and EIR 
2003 

 

Outstanding CALAFCO Member Michael P. Ryan, CALAFCO Board Member 
Distinguished Service Award Henri F. Pellissier, Los Angeles LAFCo 
Most Effective Commission Award San Luis Obispo LAFCo 
Outstanding Commissioner Award Bob Salazar, El Dorado LAFCo 
Outstanding LAFCo Professional Award Shirley Anderson, San Diego LAFCo 
Outstanding LAFCo Clerk Award Lori Fleck, Siskiyou LAFCo 
 
 



 
 

2019 Achievement Award Nominations 
 

 
 
Project of the Year Award Napa LAFCo 

Comprehensive Water Service Study 
Special Achievement Award James M. Roddy 

 
2002 

 

Outstanding CALAFCO Member Ken Lee, CALAFCo Legislative Committee Chair 
Most Effective Commission Award San Diego LAFCo Outstanding 
Commissioner Award Ed Snively, Imperial LAFCo 
Outstanding LAFCo Professional Award Paul Hood, San Luis Obispo LAFCo 
Outstanding LAFCo Clerk Award Danielle Ball, Orange LAFCo 
Project of the Year Award San Luis Obispo LAFCo 
Outstanding Government Leadership Award Napa LAFCo, Napa County Farm Bureau, Napa Valley 

Vintners Association, Napa Valley Housing Authority, Napa 
County Agricultural Commissioner’s Office, Napa County 
Counsel Office, and Assembly Member Patricia Wiggins 

2001 
 

Outstanding CALAFCO Member SR Jones, CALAFCO Executive Officer 
Distinguished Service Award David Martin, Tax Area Services Section, State Board of 

Equalization 
Outstanding Commissioner Award H. Peter Faye, Yolo LAFCo 
Outstanding LAFCo Professional Award Ingrid Hansen, San Diego LAFCo 
Project of the Year Award Santa Barbara LAFCo 

Outstanding Government Leadership Award Alameda County Board of Supervisors, Livermore City 
Council, Pleasanton City Council 

Legislator of the Year Award Senator Jack O’Connell 
 

2000 
 

Outstanding CALAFCO Member Ron Wootton, CALAFCO Board Chair 
Distinguished Service Award Ben Williams, Commission on Local Governance for the 

21st Century 
Most Effective Commission Award Yolo LAFCo 
Outstanding Commissioner Rich Gordon, San Mateo LAFCo 
Outstanding LAFCo Professional Award Annamaria Perrella, Contra Costa LAFCo 
Outstanding LAFCo Clerk Award Susan Stahmann, El Dorado LAFCo 
Project of the Year Award San Diego LAFCo 
Legislator of the Year Award Robert Hertzberg, Assembly Member 

 
1999 

 

Distinguished Service Award Marilyn Ann Flemmer-Rodgers, Sacramento LAFCo 
Most Effective Commission Award Orange LAFCo 
Outstanding Executive Officer Award Don Graff, Alameda LAFCo 
Outstanding LAFCo Clerk Award Dory Adams, Marin LAFCo 
Most Creative Solution to a Multi- San Diego LAFCo 
Jurisdictional Problem 
Outstanding Government Leadership Award Assembly Member John Longville 
Legislator of the Year Award Assembly Member Robert Hertzberg 

 

 
 
 



 
 

2019 Achievement Award Nominations 
 

 
 
1998 

 

Outstanding CALAFCO Member Dana Smith, Orange LAFCo 
Distinguished Service Award Marvin Panter, Fresno LAFCo 
Most Effective Commission Award San Diego LAFCo 
Outstanding Executive Officer Award George Spiliotis, Riverside LAFCo 
Outstanding Staff Analysis Joe Convery, San Diego LAFCo 

Joyce Crosthwaite, Orange LAFCo 
Outstanding Government Leadership Award Santa Clara County Planning Department 

 
1997 

 

Most Effective Commission Award Orange LAFCo 
Outstanding Executive Officer Award George Finney, Tulare LAFCo 
Outstanding Staff Analysis Annamaria Perrella, Contra Costa LAFCo 
Outstanding Government Leadership Award South County Issues Discussion Group 
Most Creative Solution to a Multi- Alameda LAFCo and Contra Costa LAFCo 
Jurisdictional Problem 

Legislator of the Year Award Assembly Member Tom Torlakson 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please join us for the  
CALAFCO Annual Conference 

October 30 – November 1, 2019 
Sacramento, California 

 
 


